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Here We Go Again . . .

This is a Very Serious Issue of The Realist, but sometimes you
have to earn the right to be funny.

Subscribers will receive another number soon, sub-divided into
mini-issues to satisfy postal requirements for meeting our stated
frequency of publication game.

Then, in November, at long last, the 15th Anniversary Issue,
featuring “An Impolite Interview with Just Plain Ram Dass”; a
documented analysis by Mae Brussell on the murder of J. Edgar
Hoover as the tip of an iceberg of literally hundreds of political
assassinations in the country; and excerpts from my autobio-
graphy, The Adventures oj Rumplejoreskin.

My 10,000-word satire “Thomas Eagleton Seagull,” appears in
the September issue of Playboy. If Idon’t get a regular publisher
for it, I’ll put a little book out myself, together with a couple of
other stories I've been working on, “Tongue Fu" and “Schmucko
Marx.”

That’s how The Realist gets subsidized.

Dislocated Visions of Watergate

» The Manchester Union Leader recently ran a front-page edi-
torial by publisher William Loeb, accusing Henry Kissinger of
being Governor Nelson Rockefeller’s “spy” in the White House.
This is the same newspaper that brought Senator Edmund
Muskie to tears with a smear of his wife during the Democratic
primary campaign. Afterall, who would want to elect anybody to
be President that actually cries in public?

» The Realist's award for Fucking Up Above and Beyond the
Call of Coincidence goes to that anonymous television engineer
who, at the height of former Attorney General John Mitchell’s
testimony, sent out over the network a couple of audio spurts
from a commercial in which you could hear Eddie Lawrence, the
Old Philosopher, saying: “Hiya, sweetie, ya say it’s 11 p.m. and
you’re stuck with four million greasy dishes ... Isthat what’s
botherin’ you, Bunky?”

* G. Gordon Liddy has stayed at many hotels while carrying
out his espionage activities over the years. As a hobby, he saved
those little bars of soap that you always find in hotel bathrooms.
But when it looked like the heat was on, Liddy removed every one
of the little soap wrappers and proceeded to shred them. And you
wanna know what he did with all those little soap bars? Easy. He
melted ’em down into Jews.

e Pick a metaphor, any metaphor — the Cowboys and the
Yankees; the Good Lawyers against the Bad Lawyers; Deep
Throat versus Deep Six — it doesn't really matter which. For,
despite Senator Ervin’s assertion that Watergate has no redeem-
ing qualities, the scandal has inspired a modest proposal for pro-
viding innumerable jobs for countless unemployed individuals, in
business and government alike. Wiretapping may be against the
law, but there is nothing illegal about hiring cheap labor to listen
in on extension phones. Let’s take the automation out of black-
mail.

* The President’s staff —a front for the ultimate soap opera,
The Secret Government — filtered through the J. Walter Thomp-
son advertising agency. These were not men who evolved out of
any tradition of public service, but rather one of promoting spe-
cial interests: French’s Mustard, Seven-Up, Black Flag Insecti-
cide. Richard Nixon wasjust another brand name. His Press Sec-
retary, Ronald Ziegler, had been a Disneyland Guide — some-
thing to do with the fake hippo in the Jungle Boat ride —and ob-
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viously he still is a Disneyland Guide. His spccchwritcr, William
Safirc, had beena Public Relations hack representing Ex-Lax. By
dint of his ability to leak stories to The New York Times, Safire is
now one of their columnists, but he has a terrible reputation
amongjournalists because when he was at the White House, in the
words of Washington Post columnist Spencer Rich, he “peddled
scurrilous and completely false stories.” Yet, if it was logical that
one whose life calling had been to extol the virtues ofa laxative —
indeed, a man who had a vested interest in other people’s consti-
pation — should have ended up putting words in the mouth of a
President with an equally dehumanized outlook (“Wednesday is
his day for thinking,” according to Jack Anderson), then docs it
not become totally appropriate that the only person to be grant-
ed access to those controversial White House tapes should be
former Sani-Flush account executive H.R. Haldcman, he who
had a vested interest in dirty toilets?

e Last year Jann Wenner, editor of Rolling Stone, turned Carl
Bernstein down for ajob. It was Bernstein who, with Bob Wood-
ward, did the investigative reporting on Watergate which led to a
Pulitzer Prize for the Washington Post. It began as an ordinary
burglary story being covered by a reporter on the police beat, not
a political analyst. But Bernstein sat up front in court and over-
heard one of the defendants whisper to the judge that he had
worked for the CIA, and somehow that made him a little suspi-
cious. lasked Carl Bernstein for his theory on why the masking
tape was-left in the door latch, which led to the arrest for the
break-in at the Watergate. He figures that “They must’ve as-
sumed the guard was taken care of.” My own sources in the CIA
contend that the tape was left deliberately because somebody in
that squad wanted them to get caught. But, just think, if Wenner
had hired Bernstein, would the Pay/not have become so involved
with probing Watergate, and would Rolling Stone now be receiv-
ing the Pulitzer Prize instead for Bernstein’s in-depth analysis of
the cocaine shared by Sly Stone and Doris'Day?

An Open Letter to the FCC

Dean Burch, Chairperson
Federal Communications Commission

This is to register a formal complaint against the radio and tele-
vision commercials in which American citizens are cordially in-
vited to become anonymous informers on supposed narcotics
users and sellers, thus providing the “reasonable suspicion” neces-
sary tojustify breaking and entering by law enforcement officers.

It would not seem to be either legal or appropriate for the FCC
to continue allowing the public airwaves to condone and contri-
bute to such obscene violations of the United States Constitu-
tion, in the guise of Public Service announcements.

lunderstand there is a growing movement to protest these ads
by individuals calling the toll-free telephone number of Opera-
tion Clean Sweep and providing the names and addresses of res-
pectable residents of various communities. This may explain the
increase in drug abuse raids upon families who never knew that
Storm Trooper tactics could apply to them. Surely you don’t want
this trend in negative education to expand any further.
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The Plight of Female Reporters

* When former Vietnam correspondent Gloria Emerson learn-
ed that you couldn’t sec the moonlight for the flares stuck in the
vaginas of Vietnamese women in order to make village chieftains
talk, she realized in retrospect that even prostitution supervised
by the U.S. Army was rape because what wedid to theireconomy
left no vocational alternatives. No matter that a gang rape would
be rationalized as Relaxation and Release for Our Boys, she now
laments, American reporters never viewed such activity as tor-
ture of the civilian population.

» Hearst correspondent Marianne Means admits that she isa
feminist before she isajournalist and therefore has a closed mind
on the subject because she doesn’t want to hurt the women’s
movement. So, for example.-she consciously makes allowances
for female politicians that she would never make for males. Ironi-
cally, during the '72 Presidential campaign. Senator McGovern
said to her in an interview, “Do you really believe that abortion is
awoman’scivil right?” — but the quote was missing from her pub-
lished article, cut out presumably for lack of space.

» There was much publicity over Washington Post columnist
Sally Quinn’s remark that a politician will tell things to a female
that he would never tell a male, and if. in the process of confiding
his attitude on, say, impeachment, the position his hand takes is
on her ass. she is not so sure she would remove it no matter how
demeaning, but nobody reported the response of Los Angeles
Times correspondent Marlene Cimons that male reportersaren't
expected to sleep with their sources for information because there
are so few women in high enough positions for that to occur.

» Although Kandy Stroud of Women's Wear Dailycomplains

« that the stories assigned to female reporters smack of gossip, she
nevertheless feels it’s interesting to read, for instance, that Jcb
Magrudcr’s children were being told by schoolmates that their
father is a traitor. The trouble which remains unspoken, how-
ever, is that having a double standard for the kinds of stories male
and female reporters cover — so that the latter automatically get
assigned to the wife of John Ehrlichman  has led in a strange
linear way directly to the death of CBS correspondent Michelle
Clark. For she was working on a story about the wife of E. How-
ard Hunt when the plane they were both on dropped from the
sabotaged skies of United and crashed. But Dorothy Hunt wasn’t
just a housewife; she was an agent of CREEP. And Michelle
Clark may be the first contemporary martyr to Women’s Libera-
tion.

Playing Tennis While America Burns

Daniel Schorr of CBS News strives so hard to be objective that
he won’t even join the Reporters Committee for Freedom of the
Press.

At the Liebling Counter-Convention in Washington D.C. 1
handed him (among a few hundred others) a copy of the August
1972 issue of The Realist featuring Mac Brusscil's three-part ar-
ticle titled “Why Was Martha Mitchell Kidnapped?”

He thumbed through the pages and scoffed at the suggestion
that the incident involving Senator Kennedy at Chappaquiddick
was yetanother CIA-orchestrated dirty trick, particularly in view
of the fact that the National Safety Council hasn’t a single case of
anybody escaping from a submerged car the way Teddy allegedly
did.

Schorr said this “taints” the rest of the material. The best |
could do was get him to admit that it’s not impossible.

Then there was a panel of prominent newspaper editors from
around the country. I hearkened them back to October 1971 when
Louis Tackwood —who was a provocateur and informer for the
Los Angeles Police Department for nine years — surfaced and
held a press conference where he revealed a scenario that was
utterly shocking even to the utterly jaded.
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They were planing to disrupt the Republicans in San Diego,
with bombs going off in the convention center so that innocent
delegates would be killed, and they were going to plant evidence
of a radical conspiracy, thereby bringing about martial law and
the assassination of President Nixon.

Several newspapers carried this story, but then — who knows
why, maybe we’ve simple O.D.’d on so many lies that when the
truth istold our nervous system rejects it as a foreign object —the
story stopped dead.

I related to these editors how, since President Kennedy was Kill-
ed in 1963. Mac Brussell has been devoting her life to researching
the evidence in a series of assassinations in this country that form
a pattern which parallels, beyond the bounds of coincidence, the
pattern of assassinations which brought Hitler to power in Nazi
Germany.

In June 1972, when the Watergate break-in occurred, she
realized that a code name Tackwood had mentioned was the same
as that found in the pocket of one of the “burglars.” Had it not
been for the arrests, the San Diego plans would have been execu-
ted in Miami.

The only panelist responding to my challenge - William Tho-
mas, editor of the Los Angeles Times —said that the Tackwood
allegations were investigated and found without substance.

“Who investigated?” 1asked.

“The Los Angeles Police Department, the San Diego Police
Department and the FBI.”

To which | responded, “Who have all proven themselves to be
totally reliable.”

The audience of journalists laughed.

Seymour Hirsch — who originally couldn’t get his expose of
the My Lai massacre accepted by The New York Times, but is
now their shining star and can get anything he wants Xeroxed, no
waiting — was excited over the identical code names.

“She’s crazy.” he said of Mae Brussell, “but she’s right.”

Yet not a word of it appeared under his byline in the Times.

The relationship between political assassinations and Water-
gate is like the net in a tennis game. Even those who arc aware of
its presence continue to’take it for granted while they volley back
and forth.

There is a certain media ego involvement in the status quo.
Who wants to admit, in effect, that all their reporting and pontifi-
cating for the past ten years on the Democratic and Republican
Parties has been perpetuating the myth of a superficial double
front?

The Chairman of the Board of the Washington Post, Freder-
ick Sessions Beebce. is also director of Allied Chemical, and
Southeast Bancorporation which has $150-million invested in
U.S. Government securities, and Tri Continental Corporation
which has S65-million so invested.

Is it possible that the Journalism Establishment envisions find-
ing it more comfortable, ultimately, to thrive under an armed
takeover than a President whose greatest secret ambition has al-
ways been to be played by Jack Lemmon in a movie biography?

Daniel Schorr reassured us all on Walter Cronkitc, however,
that the real reason former Presidential Assistant John Dean was
snitching so much was because he’s obsessed with being accosted
sexually by other prisoners because of his boyish appearance.

A Few Necessary Plugs

* One of the most important books of our time is being sup-
pressed. The War Conspiracy by Peter Dale Scott was published
in 1972 to sell for $7.50. Bobbs-Merrill, having been swallowed
alive by LIT, has treated it with a lack of pride comparable to the
parents of a terminal transvestite. Watergate is merely one aspect
of the war brought home to a country governed by an unholy tri-
nity of military intelligence, organized crime and corporate eco-
nomy.
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* You can adopt a Prisoner of America. Labelled “radicals”
when they speak out against racism and injustice in prison, they
are brutalized and isolated in adjustment centers. Write POA.
1029 4th St., Rm. 38, San Rafael, Calif. 94901. Wear a bracelet
with the name, prison number and date of incarceration. POA
supplies them at cost (S5.50) or have your own made and they’ll
supply details. Otherwise these prisoners remain unknown as
those in Auschwitz were unknown to the Good Germans. Don’t
be a Good American.

e Torture isrampant today in over 30 countries, often as “nor-
mal” peacetime government policy. There is urgent need for a le-
gally binding convention that would obligate nations to outlaw
torture. You can aid this campaign by contributing to Amnesty
International, 177 Toyon Rd., Atherton, Calif. Help spread an
epidemic of conscience and a renaissance of responsibility.

» There is an organization for people who wish to be involved
in working full-time for constructive changes in society — on the
job in mainstream institutions as well as by creating altemativesin
your own communities. Vocations for Social Change, 4911Tele-
graph Ave., Oakland, Calif. 94609, serves as a national informa-
tion clearing house. Their magazine, Workforce, provides list-
ings of job openings, articles on how to organize your own pro-
jects and a resource section of over 250 groups willing to answer
questions about problems and processes in their fields. Send $5
for 6 months.

Baseball Begets Body Barometer
Cleveland Indians pitchér Gaylord Perry has been accused of

throwing grcaseballs. However, he claims to get that extra some-
thing, not by rubbing his hand in his hair, which would be against
the rules, but rather by wiping his hand in his armpit, which
doesn’t violate any existing regulation.

Thus, there is a hierarchy developing, wherein the National
Pastime favors organic cheating (sweat) over artificial cheating
(Brylcrcem). Of course, spitballs are still illegal, so it’s not as ifall
natural body excretions were acceptable.

Will every professional baseball pitcher soon be required to use
an anti-perspirant or else risk being sent to the showers?
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Who Is The Mafia And
Why Are They Saying Such
Nasty Things About It?

By Our Underworld Correspondent

Organized crime is any continuous conspiracy designed to vio-
late the laws of a given society. The purpose of such a conspiracy
is to give an unequitable amount of political and economic power
to the conspirators.

Psychologically speaking, it is a form of elitism derived from
the belief that certain people are entitled to more privileges than
others and arc therefore above the law. It is the premise upon
which racism, the exploitation of women and class consciousness
are based.

In America, awareness of organized crime as an institution has
been greatly confused by the fact that it exists on three different le-
vels, but is generally spoken of as a single entity.

The difference in each segment of the criminal conspiracy is its
defined area of exploitation. One segment operates in urban cen-
ters, another on a national basis and the largest is worldwide in
scope.

Of these different segments, the most commonly known are the
ethnic gangs that operate such traditional rackets as gambling,
prostitution, narcotics and loan sharking within the inner city.

These groups arc widely known because they arc clearly visible
and offer illicit services to the incomcd populace, while ex-
ploiting the poor.

Originally these gangs emerged in response to the tensions
created by the industrial revolution. Primary among these wasthe
propaganda produced by large corporations that encouraged
European immigration without resolving the contradictions
created by rapid urbanization, job discrimination, segregated
housing and unequitable law enforcement.

This led to a situation whereby in 1919 Chicago was being vic-
timized by six different gangs, each centered around a different
borough of the city

On the South side, six Sicilian brothers known as the Genna
Clan specialized in extortion, monopolized olive oil imports and
eventually produced bootleg liquor.

The predominantly Polish Southwest sector of Chicago was
ruled by the Saltis-McErlane gang. Like their Sicilian counter-
part, they specialized in extortion and bootleg liquor but added
paid assassinations to their list of money-making propositions.

Control of the Irish Northeast side went to the O’Banion gang.
It was run by florist Dion O’Banion, whose men made elaborate
use of the newly invented 45. cal. machine gun, affectionately
known as the “Chicago typewriter.”

The Irish community on the South side of the city had two
gangs, each run by an O’Donnell. They were one of the earliest
groups to take over the local political apparatus and controlled
everything from the police officer on the street to county supervi-
sor.

Finally, there was the Levee, run by a non-Sicilian Italian
named Jim Colosimo whose early retirement from the rackets and
unexpected demise created an opening for one of his young assis-
tants named Al Capone.

Similar patterns existed in large cities across the country with
the addition of Jewish, Syrian, Chinese and Black gangs among
others.

The lure of migration to America was the promise of instant
wealth and when the promise Was replaced by reality, the more
persistent believers turned to crime.

The ethnic gangs were generally organized along family lines
using native language, native superstition and native customsasa
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basis for maintaining their identity, establishing discipline and
creating an aura of secrecy within the group.

Because the American justice system operates in English, the
easiest people to exploit were those who came directly from over-
seas and had not yet learned their newly adopted language. With
little threat from the police, small groups of thugs would band to-
getherand demand money from the continuous flow of incoming
immigrants.

Hie best known of these extortion rackets were the black hand
notes that appeared in the Italian community at the turn of the
century. To enforce payment on these notes, various forms ofvio-
lence and murder were developed and then eventually used to or-
ganize prostitution and gambling within the ghetto.

When violence is used to maintain power in an institution, it is
also used to extend the boundaries of that institution, and or-
ganized crime is no exception.

The well-documented gun battles that plagued the inner city
during the depression were an apparently endless effort to dis-
cover the king of the mountain, or the “boss of bosses,” and no
one questioned the existence of organized crime.

When alcohol was declared illegal in the early’20s, profitsfrom
bootleg liquor suddenly changed the status of the ethnic gangs
from petty thieves to major forces within the country’s economy.
This in turn created an escalation in gang violence that took on
the proportions of a civil war.

Following the particular bloody takeover of Cicero by Al Ca-
pone that culminated in the St. Valentine’s Day Massacre, pres-
sure emerged from within the crime establishment to form a loose
coalition that would settle territorial disputes through arbitra-
tion rather than violence.

It was the beginning of the second level of organized crime in
which organized exploitation took place on a national basis.
From this point on confusion about the nature of organized crime
began to set in, much of it created and nutured by the gangsters
themselves.

Prior to the formation of a national crime syndicate, some of
the ethnic gangs had developed links with their counterparts in
other cities.

For example, prior to prohibition, there was a Mafia, it called
itself the Mafia, it was Sicilian and was national in scope with all
the trappings of Mario Puzo’s Godfather.

But. when efforts were made to organize the entire crime
establishment, the Mafia was only one segment among many and
did not control the entire operation.

Credit for organizing the syndicate is generally given to Meyer
Lansky, a Jewish gangster from New York, who along with Bug-
sy Siegel led an extortion gang, before providing protection for
Lucky Luciano’s bootleg business.

Beginning in 1929, Lansky Helped set up a series of meetings
that resulted in the formation of a criminal conspiracy of unpre-
cedented proportions. However, confusion was created by the
fact that many of the old, well-known gangsters were allowed to
continue operating as before while being stripped of all real power
within the national organization.

It was their function to draw the attention of honest law
enforcement officials and the general public, while the real power
within the syndicate operated in total secrecy. For their services
the old time hoods were well paid and many of them have served
to this day playing a role that has been romanticized by Holly-
wood but which has no basis in fact.

The maps and charts solemnly brandished about by crimino-
logists, with lines drawn between cities and sinister sounding
names, isa testimony to the effectiveness of the syndicate propa-
ganda campaign. Put simply, the information is bullshit.

A few of the oldtimers have granted interviews in which they
claim to “tell all” and probably more would do the same if they
could keep a straight face.

Ironically, when the syndicate was formed, the main criminal
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faction to object to the new arrangement was the Mafia itself.
Many of its leaders did not trust non-Sicilians and wanted to
continue operating on the basis of competitive power.

But, once the structure of the national crime confederation was
agreed upon by the majority of the country's racketeers, the
opposition was dealt with in the time-honored fashion. On
September 10, 1931. forty Italian Mafiosi from the old school
who refused to join the syndicate were permanently replaced.

The old ethnic gangs that laid the foundation for the newly ex-
panded criminal conspiracy continue to operate within the inner
city, but as the problems of urbaization led to the problems of
suburbanization, their power base was dissipated, leading to
speculation that organized crime is dying along with the cities.

This isagain propaganda, encouraged by those who benefit by
it.

When the syndicate became a reality in the early ’30s it turned
its resources in four new directions. First, it began to invest the
vast profits made on bootleg liquor in legitimate business; second,
it nationalized illegal gambling and developed a system of wire
services that earns over $200-billion a year in profits; third, it
introduced heroin into the country on a large scale; and, fourth, it
began a headlong assault on the labor movement that effectively
destroyed its usefulness to the average worker.

The way in which illegal profits were turned into legal invest-
ments was through a process of sanitization in Swiss banks that
was allegedly the brainstorm of Meyer Lansky.

What he did was to have syndicate couriers take large sums of
money to Switzerland where it was deposited in numbered ac-
counts. In exchange for the sudden influx in business, the banks
were expected to return the money to the syndicate in the form of
low collateral loans. The banks then received interest on the loans
as payment for cleansing the money.

The system worked so well that the syndicate was able to estab-
lish its own banks and operate with complete immunity from the
law in Switzerland, the Bahamas and union banks within the
United States.

To give the process an appearance of legitimacy, the syndicate
hired college educated business management types with no trace-
able connections to organized crime to act as recipients of the
bank “loans.” These fronts for syndicate money have all the signs
of being resourceful businessmen who are able to expand and
develop their corporations through the development of good cre-
dit and proper planning.

In fact they are simply stand-ins who manage the money and
sign the contracts. They receive good salaries but must turn overa
large percentage of their profits to the syndicate.

Most of these fronts are unknown and unrecognized by the gen-
eral public and give the syndicate,a base of power within the
economy that is unequalled in size and scope while at the same
time presenting an all-American image that is seldom associated
with racketeers.

Initially, these investments went into real estate, motels, res-
taurants, franchise schemes of every description, the entertain-
ment business and distribution outlets for the entire media,
including books, records and films. At present there is literally no
corner of the American economy that has not been penetrated by
investments funded by profits from syndicate schemes.

Heroin was originally brought into this country on a large scale
in 1934, to neutralize the Black rebellion that had rocked Harlem
in the early ’30s. It soon became apparent that the drug industry
was also extremely profitable, an ounce of heroin being worth
four times its weight in gold.

Since the "30s the syndicate has moved into every form ofillicit
drug traffic imaginable, including the black market sales of
prescription drugs. This racket involves shipping large quantities
of pharmaceutical drugs into countries that have no drug quotas
and then having them smuggled back into this country.

In the last five years, syndicate operatives have moved into the
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once independent markets such as marijuana, and the combined
profits from the sale of illegal drugs is beyond estimation.

There is a constant stream of misinformation on syndicate
involvement in the drug traffic from official sources. The Presi-
dent himselfhas stated that the majority of heroin that reaches the
United States comes from Turkey when in fact 80% of it comes
from Southeast Asia.

All propaganda is designed to deceive, and federal reports on
drug smuggling are propaganda.

A conservative estimate of the profits from the sale of heroin in
New York city alone would be one million dollars a day based on
the known number of addicts in the c:ty.

What this money represents in practical terms is raw political
power. Any institution that has access to one million dollars a day
has few rivals when it comes to political pressure, and the factsdo
not indicate otherwise.

For example, the Knapp Commission investigation, initiated
by Mayor Lindsay, concluded that every detective on the New
York Police Department received graft; there were no excep-
tions. Graft affects the administration of justice, and the major
source of graft is organized crime.

The problem of drug abuse is a political one.

Couple this power with the syndicate’s takeover of the labor
movement, and the implications arc staggering.

Organized crime is interested in labor unions because they give
the syndicate a legitimate base of power that can be used in the
manipulation of political campaigns as well as the manipulation
of large sums of money.

Syndicate figures like Frank Nitti and Louis Lepkc pioneered
the technique of extortion that proved effective against labor
unions. They would demand 75% of the money taken in through
dues and pension benefits in addition to the complete political
support of the union staff. In return the union received “protec-
tion.” It was — in a phrase of the day — an offer they couldn’t
refuse.

The transportation industry was taken over first, because it was
essential to the bootleg rackets. But, following repeal, it was dis-
covered that control of transportation could effectively lead to
control of other industries.

Paricularly vulnerable were the building trades that needed a
continuous supply of raw materials in order to operate. Mob con-
trol of trucking and the docks along the Hast Coast put them ina
strategic position to infiltrate these unions, and once they had
been corrupted, the rest of the union movement was no match for
their combined strength.

After a local union had been taken over, the syndicate would
use it to work its way into the national apparatus. And once that
had taken place, the pattern of exploitation became remarkably
similar.

The rank and file union members would have to pay for their
jobs, they themselves would be denied pension and welfare bene-
fits, elections would be rigged and those who objected were
encouraged to cooperate with liberal doses of violence.

There arc unions that remain honest, but their impact on the la-
bor movement as a whole, compared to that of the syndicate, is
minimal.

Academic economists like to play down the impact of
organized crime on the economy, and reliable figures on the sub-
ject are non-existent.

When comparisons are made they are generally in the form of
gross revenue. For example, Meyer Lansky likes to say that
“We’re bigger than U.S. Steel.” Such a comparison is misleading
because the syndicate has nowhere near the operating expendi-
tures of a typical conglomerate like ITT.

The cost of racketeering is salaries and bribes; all else is profit.
In the business world the most profitable companies can claim
only an 8 or 9% profit from their gross proceeds at best.

It is not unusual for a syndicate investment to show a 100% re-
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turn, or better, a figure that makes “legitimate” business men
drool.

Couple this with the Tact that syndicate profits arc generally
handled in cash which is then readily available and it would seem
that the impact of organized crime on the economy would be
somewhat impressive.

Because much of the syndicate’s cash profit ends up outside of
the country, the amount of real money in this country is rapidly
dwindling. This creates a fluctuation in the value of American
dollars based on domestic supply and demand. Organiz.ed crime
has now reached the point where it can make millions ofdollars
from the sale of money itself, and they do this by making their
cash available on the foreign exchange.

This means that the syndicate both creates a problem and pro-
fits by its remedy. In response, Nixon devalues the dollar but
never explains why.

This leads to the third and most widespread level of organized
crime, the international “combination.”

No one on Wall Street will admit it, but the awesome power of
the syndicate has resulted in an alliance between the country’s
leading oil firms, conglomerates, the banking industry and por-
tions of the military. The combination literally controls the
country, and the methods that worked so well during prohibition
have been used in Vietnam.

The roots of this alliance date back to World War Il, when
Naval Intelligence used the Mob to protect the East Coast from
enemy penetration of the syndicate controlled docks. In ex-
change for their cooperation, the government released Lucky
Luciano from prison. .

Luciano returned to Italy, where -along with Mussolini
colaborator Vito Genovese, he set up an international heroin syn-
dicate that was unprecedented in size. The two of them also took
control of the black market that flourished in Southern Europe
after the war. Remnants of this operation recently emerged in
Vietnam when Master Sergeant Woolridge was arrested for
making S10,000 a week in kickbacks from the PX.

If the Federal government failed to show the connection be-
tween Woolridge, the syndicate, the combination and the mili-
tary, it wasn’t due to a lack of awareness or understanding.

After the second World War, it became apparent to the
combination that if profits were to continue on the upswing, the
American version of capitalism had to secure its position in Afri-
ca, South America, Southeast Asia and the. Middle East. The
untapped raw materials from these four areas held the key, they
believed, to corporate expansion and had to be controlled at all
cost.

But. before this could be done, the American electorate had to
be scared into believing U.S. intervention was an absolute neces-
sity in the newly developing nations of the world. To do this the
combination created the “International Threat of Communism”
and the “Yellow- Peril" to justify their goals.

The first step in creating this illusion led to what has come to be
called the McCarthy Era. Roy Cohn, Senator Joe McCarthy’s
chief investigator during the star chamber hearings, was an ad-
mitted friend of such syndicate figures as Moc Dalitz, a Las Vegas
front man for Meyer Lansky.

Crime reporter Hank Messick has throughly documented the
way in which funds from the syndicate were funneled into the ill-
fated hearings. Such collaboration is not difficult to understand,
given the late J. Edgar Hoover’s repeated insistence that there was
no such thing as organized crime.

Prominent among McCarthy’s committee members was Rich-
ard Nixon, whose friend Bebe Rebozo is nothing less than a liai-
son figure between the syndicate and the combination, with
Tricky Dick acting as the yes man for this unholy alliance.

The next major effort by the combination came following the
Cuban Revolution. Under Batista, the island had been a meccaof
combination activity, giving the conspirators a degree of secrecy
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Truman Capote Goes to Jail

by Joseph B. Morse
Dear Paul:

In your recent letter you aked for a “review” of the documen-
tary which was recently filmed here at San Quentin. In order to
expedite matters, | will simply give my reactions in the form ofa
letter. Censorship of outgoing manuscripts here takes quite a bit
of time.

Now then, having been one of the participants in Truman Ca-
pote’s recently-shown film, | can best respond to the questions
you posed (“Did he betray the confidence of those he inter-
viewed? Was material taken out of context? Was the material
slanted? Was there pro-capital punishment propaganda?”) by
starting at the beginning and relating just what happened priorto
and during the filming of this fiasco.

Approximately two months after my departure from Death
Row in 1972,1was busily being rehabilitated — by attempting to
do as little work as possible at my job assignment in San Quen-
tin’s furniture factoiy. Much to my disgust, | was told to inter-
rupt my labors of penitence long enough to report to the prison’s
“Yard Office.”

After sprinkling a little sawdust over my clothing —in hopes of
placating the high-ranking prison officials who often lurk in and
about that particular area — | departed for the Yard Office. Up-
on my arrival there, | wastold to report to the “Garden Chapel.”

that was not available in the United States.

At the request of Eisenhower, Richard Nixon was assigned the
task of returning the Cuban island to the "proper” hands.

In response, an army was created that was funded by both the
CIA and the syndicate, i.e., the combination, and was largely
made up of Cuban nationalists who had expatriated to the U.S.

Unfortunately for Nixon and his friends, the planned invasion
was delayed until after the presidential election. Notaccordingto
plans, John F. Kennedy got the most votes, an error injudgment
by the conspirators that hasn’t since been repeated.

When the invasion turned into a fiasco, Kennedy reorganized
the CIA and created a sudden increase in unemployed intelli-
gence agents, some of who didn’t get jobs with Nixon’s Re-
Election Committee.

These unemployed “specialists” were put to work directly for
the conspiracy where they did not have to worry about such
bothersome formalities as Congressional approval and guilt-
ridden Presidents who might foil their plans.

Allen Dulles and many of his closest friends became private
detectives, or intelligence agents for hire, complete with 20 years’
experience looking through secret files, which of course never get
into the wrong hands.

Such inconspicuous groups as Intcrtel, Mullen & Associates
and Mayheu Business Consultants became privately financed es-
ionage agents fpr the captors of political power in America.

The activities of such groups have resulted in nothing less than
a political coup, that marks its beginning on November 22, 1963.

James Hepburn, in his book Farewell America, estimates that
the assassination of President Kennedy cost $10-million with
contributions from over 100 beneficiaries varying from $10,000 to
S500.000 apiece.

Former New Orleans District Attorney Jim Garrison
convincingly argues that the brain center of this consppiracy was
a private detective agency located at 544 Camp St. in New Or-
leans and run by former CIA agent, former FBI agent, former
New Orleans Police official Guy Bannister.

A frequent visitor to the office was Lee Harvey Oswald who
stamped the address on pro-Castro Literature that he passed out
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“Fuck,” I silently grumbled. “1got my clothes dirty — just to
go see a Bible thumper ... "

Well. | wandered into the Garden Chapel’s office and, lo and
behold, there sat Mr. Truman Capote and a few of his cohorts.
Capote and 1spent a few moments discussing his having spent
three days in a county jail because of my case.

In 1968 Capote went to interview the residents of some of the
death rows in various states. The completed film —called Death
Row, U.S.A. —was never shown on TV. (L was told that the film
was fairly well done, but no sponsor could be found.)

However, Capote hastalentand he created an article and sold it
to Esquire. That’s where the trouble began. During the conversa-
tion between Capote and me, he had asked, “Ifyou were to get out
right now do you think you could kill again?” 1took a moment to
ponder the question, and concluded that I could kill again if re-
leased immediately.

I knew that I would revert to being a smack freak — which
would engender a need for money. Hustling to support a habital-
ways creates situations wherein a smack freak might have to hurt,
or kill someone. So ... my reply to Capote was "Probably.” |
gave him no reason f<r my answer.

Now then, when the Esquire article was printed, my terse, one-
word reply was changed into a quote which stated, “If | ever get
out of here 1will kill again.”

Approximately a year after the Esquirearticle came out, 1was
granted a retrial on one of my murder charges. Since this retrial
would include a determination of penalty (life or death), a prose-
cutor from San Diego decided to subpoena Capote and have him

in his role as a “Communist dupe.”

Another private detective with prominent clients and unusual
assignments is Robert Mayheu. After retiring from the FBI, May-
heu set up a Business Consultant firm in Washington where he
attracted the attention of Howard Hughesand eventually went to
work for the man as head of his Las Vegas connection.

Before leaving Washington, Mayheu had organized a combina-
tion-backed attempt to assassinate Fidel Castro. Using former
CIA agents and syndicate enforcers, Mayheu landed a team of
assassins in Cuba armed with high-powered rifles. When this
proved unsuccessful, he tried to have Castro’s food poisoned but
this too failed.

Peripherally involved in the plot was Frank Sturgis, a man who
later used money from Nixon’s re-election funds to bug the
Democratic National Headquarters, at the Watergate Hotel. Be-
fore setting up his consultation firm, Mayheu was Administra-
tive Secretary to then-Vice-Prcsident Richard Nixon.

In the meantime, Intertel has attempted to oust Allende from
Chile, and the oil companies use private security to maintain ten-
sion in the Middle East, a state ofaffairs that keepsthe price ofoil
at a minimum.

Unfortunately, all this patriotism is expensive, and the
combination is reluctant to finance espionage from its precious
profits, so an independent source of revenue was needed.

Borrowing an idea from former Nazi General Reinhard
Gchlen, who retired from the Third Reich to work for the CIA,
the combination decided to move in on the drug traffic as a source
of funds.

Disbelievers will not find this information in university text
books or from Ford Foundation study grants. Proof of the fact
comes from viewing the current battle that is raging with the
Mafia from the perspective of three different levels of organized
crime.

Monopoly capitalism is based on the theory of two companies
merging at the expense ofa third. Itisthe concept of low man out,
and the old Sicilian Mafia that once ruled the drug scene with an
iron hand is low man.
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tell the jury that | had made the statement that “If | ever get out of
here 1 will kill again."

This put Capote in a spot where he would have to tarnish his
image — regardless of which story he would have to dump on the
jury. He could testify that 1did make the statement, but then he
would have to try to explain why the transcription of the inter-
view contained no such quote.

The transcription would have really fucked him, and he had
only one alternative. He would have to tell the truth and admit
that my answer was, simply, “Probably."

This, too, would have fucked him because he would then have
to admit that he lied to Esquire (and the public).

He was fucked either way. As a result, he split and ignored the
subpoena. The DA became pissed and issued a warrant for hisar-
rest. (I believe he ended up with a three-day jail sentence plus a
fine.

Trze question now is the why behind his refusal to testify. / feel it
was because he was in a situation which wr uld have branded him
a liar, regardless of what he presented to ;he jury. Other things
seem to buttress my belief. After his release from the county jail,
he made a few appearances on TV. (Johnny Carson, Dick Cav-
ett, etc.) While on TV, he gave dijjerent reasons for his failure to
appear.

One allegation was that our interview was “confidential” and he
— as a reporter — did not have to make it public.

Then, while making another appearance on TV, he said that his
reason for not testifying was based on the fact that he “didn’t have
anything to say" —and he stated that the D.A. simply wanted to
use some celebrity to impress the jury.

You may feel differently, but I believe hejust didn’t want to get
caught up in a situation which would have placed his credibility in
jeopardy.

Anyway, then we got down to the business at hand. | was told
that a documentary film was to be made and approximately 20
prisoners, if willing, were going to be interviewed. The important
thing to remember at this point is that their (Capote, et al) state-
ment was, “We want a cross-section of prisoners —and this film
will provide an opportunity to air their grievances."

In short, they alleged that they simply wanted to allow the vari-
ous types of individuals who comprise San Quentin’s population
to “Tellit like it is." The impression 1was given was that the film,
— even without any particular slant by those making it — would
manifest the actual need for improvements in the penal system.

Isigned the agreement to participate in the filming, but 1did so
with great reluctance. I personally do not give a fuck about penal
reform. Nor do 1 make any serious claims that | will ever be “re-
habilitated.” | knew well in advance that my attitude and opini-
ons would be highly accentuated — at the expense of the remain-
der of the population — but at the same time 1do, in fact, feel that
the penal system is a total failure, and | felt like saying so.

(Besides, they were paying 50 bucks, and that immediately
brought the materialistic swine in me to the surface.)

At any rate, the other prisoners who were to be interviewed
were told basically the same thing, and many seemed to feel that
this might, indeed, provide a real opportunity to relate to the pub-
lic what San Quentin is actually like.

The following day, a film crew was brought in and approxi-
mately 15 of us were individually interviewed. 1, having no penal
reform mesage to convey, simply related that 1 do not consider ca-
pital punishment a deterrent to murder —and that my own case
seemed to substantiate this belief, as 1 have been sent to Death
Row on two separate occasions.

As for the others interviewed, | did not hear the entire content
of their conversations, but 1do know that a wide range of topics
was discussed — and that many types of individuals were in-
volved in the individual interviews.

Upon completion of the individual interviews, a group dis-
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cussion was filmed. It was at this point that Capote’s actual plan
and/or intent began to surface. The “group" Capote had selected
did not, in any way, represent a true cross-section of San Quen-
tin’s population.

The group was made up of multiple murderers, an admitted ho-
mosexual, and individuals convicted of crimes which represent
only a minority of the institution’s population.

The gist of the group discussion is of no real importance — at
this point. It will suffice to say that the subjects ranged from well-
founded grievances — many of which were out of context after
the editing had been completed — to my deleted conclusion that
the penal system was a crock of shit.

At the conclusion of the group discussion, a few prison offi-
cials were interviewed, and then Capote and his cohorts fled to ed-
it the plethora of material they had gathered.

| feel that Capote left San Quentin with enough material to
show a true cross-section of San Quentin ... or any other
prison. However, this created an impasse for Capote. He, beinga
professional in the true sense of the word, had to come up with
something which had commercial appeal. After all, in this ma-
terialistic society, that is the name of the game.

'So . . . what was the solution? No sponsor would want to pre-
sent the vast amount of footage in its enrirety. To assume a pro-
prison reform stance, and slant accordingly, would ward off many
sponsors, as too many peoplearc stillona"Law & Order”and/or
“Quit coddling those fucking criminals” trip.

At the same time, an anti-prison reform slant would simply be
too unrealistic, as nearly everyone agrees that some reforms are
needed.

However, Capote’s expertise enabled him to come up witha so-
lution. He simply selected an extremely small portion of the ma-
terial, discarded the interviews with the majority ofthe prisoners,
and came up with something which has commercial appeal.

He gave the publicjust what they wanted to see. Hegavethema
geek show. They saw one of America’s most infamous institu-
tions; they saw multiple murderers; they saw a member of the
Manson Family; they saw convicted rapists; and they saw an ad-
mitted homosexual.

Ifasked to “review” this film, 1would say it was one of the best
rip-offs 1have seen in quite a while. As for accuracy, | would have
to say it was grossly inaccurate and did not, in any way, portray a
cross-section of San Quentin’s residents.

The question now is who received the worse fucking? The un-
seen true cross-section of San Quentin — or the viewer? Consider
the following quote from a student at Stanford University:

“I have always considered myself pretty tolerant of others and
their ways. And | am interested in penal reform. . . but | watched
that Capote television special that was supposed to represent San
Quentin and those in it. And to be very frank, what | saw and lis-
tened to scared the living hell out of me. | thought at the time.
‘God, | hope those guys never get to the street.” Then | read a criti-
que of the show which said what | saw was not the average pri-
soner of San Quentin.”

Such a reaction may or may not be considered typical. | have no
way of knowing, as 1 know very little about the outside world.
However, | do believe that such a reaction isexactly what Capote
wanted to engender. Not because he isanti-prison reform, or pro-
capital punishment. 1do not believe he was attempting to convey
any particular message. He was simply creating a film which had
commercial appeal.

To do so, he had to exploit the majority of the prisoners in San
Quentin — but what he may not realize is that he has also exploit-
ed thepublic. Even though | have nopersonalinterest in penal re-
form, | do recognize the fact that the public should take a close
look at these cesspoolsand accept th$ fact that certain changes are
necessary — if prisoners are to have any chance of success once
they regain their freedom.
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The Capote film —and all others like it—do nothing but bring
reform movements to a standstill. As a result, an anachronistic
penal system oontinues to stagnate. Who suffers from this? The
prisoners? Yes, but also the public.

In conclusion, Paul, 1have to say that Capote’s documentary
was both a total failure, and yet a total success. Prisoners and the
general public were fucked, but Capote’s ego (and financial situa-
tion) certainly did not incur any damage.

This incident exemplifies my reason for having no real interest
inpenal reform. | am more concerned with social reform. If"re-
habilitation” means allowing myself to be reprogrammed to re-
turn to the outside world and get back into the unending race for
material objects and/or fame — a race which considers exploita-
tion a proper tactic — then | say fuck rehabilitation, fuck the
trinket-gathering, and fuck the outside world.

I’ll remain content with dope and peanut butter — although |
sure miss the chicks.

Your inside reporter,
Joe

Prostitutes as
Political Prisoners

by Margo St. James

The enforcement of prostitution laws differs in every' state, de-
pending on the climate of the community, but they are all dis-
criminatory in that they make the woman the scapegoat.

As a woman-whore, 1feel equality will never be achieved until
woman’s sexuality ceases to be the source of our shame: until the
men arc forced to abandon their pussy patrols.

This isan economic threat to the men who make their living en-
trapping women and homosexual men: a threat to their safe and
titillating job which actually makes them victims along with the
women. Playing a role of participant when they arc really the ob-
serverspprehender destroys their moral fiber and integrity, de-
velops their sadistic tendencies and often contributes to their cor-
ruption.

During a recent raid on a fancy San Francisco bordello, the
policemen appeared to be high, really up, turned on. their eyes
sparkling, nostrils flaring. Uniformed cops in their riot squad hel-
mets complete with chin straps ran from room to room like
hounds, while the more cool plainclothesmen postured in front of
mirrors, peeked into closets and made off with 60-odd bottles of
booze from the bar.

The Madam had leaped or was pushed from a third story win-
dow to the cement courtyard below, was left lying there inagony,
alone, for 20 minutes, because the rest of the squad hadn’tarrived
and the two arresting officers didn’t want to leave their other
quarry alone. The woman survived but there isa question whether
she will ever walk again.

The issue is not whether she isguilty of soliciting the men —she
isn’t; they came to her — but rather one ofdo these licensed thugs
have the right to barge into a woman’s home, a place where cer-
tain ‘respectable’ men take great pleasure in coming, and literally
frightening her out of the window.

They might as well have pitched her out of the window head
first; the result is the same. Lifetime disability is too high a price
for anyone to pay for committing a supposed misdemeanor.

Two weeks prior to this bordello raid, an undercover vice cop
rented a room in the Methodist Hotel in San Francisco, ans-
wered an ad in the Berkeley Barb and invited the young man who
had placed it to his room to perform a service. It ended with the
cop shooting the man in the knee, getting blood all over the room
(even in the closet) and leaving the hotel without paying the bill.

Again, possible permanent injury' for the defendant through ex-
cessive force used in the apprehension of a person suspected of
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committing a misdemeanor when in actuality the policeman soli-
cited the act.

As of late, in many large cities, customers have been arrested by
police women posing as prostitutes. Wearing a S900 microphone
called a Fargo Unit, they broadcast the conversation to a van a
block away containing two plainclothes cops who apprehend the
customer after he makes the solicitation.

In San Francisco the man had generally not been arrested, un-
less he was black, but merely issued a citation which allowed him
to appear in court on some future date, thereby not having to ex-
plain to his wife where he was all night.

The men who fought the charges and took ittoajury, a total of
six, were acquitted, so the court found it to be a real waste of
money to continue the practice, and it has been discontinued.

The real reason for the program appears to be the apprehen-
sion of pimps. The D.A. in charge of trying sex crimes stated he
had "26 pimps in San Quentin,” whereas the number for the last
decade could be counted on one hand.

The men arrested were not even examined for V.D., whereas
the women are quarantined, coerced into accepting treatment (al-
though only one out of 20 needs it), thereby creating resistant
strains oftrie and maniliaand sometimes near fatalities from drug
reactions.

Until a few weeks ago in San Francisco, women charged with
prostitution were not O.R.ed (released on their own recog-
nizance) while bank robbers and rapists were! It has now chang-
ed due to pressure from Coyote, a Loose Woman’s Organization
which is providing legal assistance, court clothes and alternative
means of survival to those women being discriminated against.

Half the women in the county jail arc there on sex charges —
political prisoners, arbitrarily chosen by society to pay dues for its
sexual guilt. Most of them are black, another aspect of the dis-
crimination —minority women being forced to work on the street
due to the fact that the hotels and massage parlors are owned by
white folks who won’t hire them or let them hang out.

The illegality of the profession heaps abuse on the women that
isn’t inherent in the business itself. Men consider them to be legi-
timate victims . . . and the women suffer all kinds of brutalities
and indignities at the hands of some of their customers . . . and
the cops.

The women feel realdegradation at the hands of the police. The
courts, controlled by men who divide women into two categories
— whore and madonna — deal out the humiliation and eco-
nomic disaster which keeps these women dependent on a man-
pimp for "protection.” It’s the same rip-off the government per-
petrates under the guise of "national security."”

The closed, cynical fraternity of whore lawyers, more often
than not, take the woman’s money, hit on her for a free piece, and
then plead her out. San Francisco has a mandatory time law
which gives the women up to six months injail for supposedly say-
ing those three little words, “Where’s the money?"

The excessive punishment and official labeling contribute
greatly to the blurring of distinction between performing a ser-
vice and committing an actual crime such as petty theft. Seventy
per cent ofall the women injail in the U.S. today were first arrest-
ed for prostitution. Such treatment turns these women into
R.0.B.’s (rip-off-bitches), the cops into S.0.B.’s and the taxpay-
ers into patrons of hypocrisy.

You can actually get Iessj%jl t[[nejor stealing than for sucking.

Editor'spostscript: Long-time readers of The Realist may have
observed the metamorphosis of Margo St. James from the Realist
Nun into the Coyote Trickster. She is now interested in com-
municating with those hookers that Watergate conspirator G.
Gordon Liddy tried to hire for the conventions, and also those
that the Internal Revenue Service pimped for. Contact her at
Coyote, P.O. Box 26354, San Francisco 94126; (415) 441-8118.
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On February 9. Ruth M. Cocrling, Nutritional Consultant, was
arrested without prior notice at her home in Aptos, Santa Cruz
County, by three officials of the State of California. She wasjail-
ed and charged with a felony, namely the violation of the Business
and Professions Code Section 2141.5 which carries with it the
maximum penalty of up to ten years in the state prison.

Her alleged crime? Giving nutritional advice.

While she was still in jail, Ruth Gocrling’s home was searched
and her records and several personal effects were seized by the
State. The files arc currently being used to contact clients whom
she has assisted professionally, which suggests that she is faced
with the prospect of repeated harassment and costly prosecution
by the state and medical authorities.

Ruth Goerling is eminently qualified to instruct those seeking
her help in the principles of good nutrition. She was a pre-med
student and graduated magna cum laude in Biology and Chem-
istry from Adclphi University, Garden City, New York, then
spent one year at the University of Goettingen. Germany asa Ful-
bright Scholar, and later worked as a Biochemical Research
Analyst for Bio-Science Laboratories, the Veterans Adminis-
tration Hospital and the Department of Public Health at
U.C.L.A., all in the Los Angeles area.

At the same time she wasengaged in a personal search along the
byways of so-called irregular medicine and the field of Nutrition
for an answer to a serious and chronic health problem which
orthodox treatment had not been able to help.

After near death in 1966, Ruth Goerling became a patient of
Dr. Henry G. Bieler, author of Food Is Your Best Medicine, and
found such compelling truth in his work that she began to study
and train with him in order to function as a Nutritional Con-
sultant.

In 1969. she spent three months at the famous Birchner-Ben-
ner Sanatorium where she personally experienced their raw food
program. Most recently she was the subject of feature articles in
the San Francisco Chronicle and the Santa Cruz Sentinel.

Here is the text of the law under which she was arrested:

Any person who willfully under circumstances or conditions which
cause or create risk of great bodily harm or serious mental or physical ill-
ness or death, practices or attempts to practice oradvertisesor holds him-
selfoutas practicing, any system or mode of treating the sick of afflicted in
this state, or diagnoses, treats, operates for, or prescribes for any ailment,
blemish, deformity, disease, disfigurement, disorder, injury or other men-
tal or physical condition of any person, without having at the time ofso
doing a valid, unrevoked certificate as provided inthis chapter or without
being authorized to perform such act pursuant to a certificate obtained in
accordance with some other provision of law is punishable in the county
jail for not exceeding one year or in the state prison for not less than one
year and not more than ten years.

Under this law. can a mother helping her teen-age daughter
with an acne problem be prosecuted?

Why is one individual, who is solely dedicated toward further-
ing the aims of good nutrition, selected for prosecution while
radio, television and magazines are permitted to carry corporate
advertising recommending drugs for everything from headaches
to hemorrhoids to athlete's foot?

Should we permit a “shotgun statute” of this type to deny us
the freedom to have access to nutritional information and ad-
vice?

If this law can be used to restrict the channels of nutritional
help, where arc we going to get that help when we need it? Itisa
well-known fact that most orthodox doctors are not trained inthe
art of Nutrition.

Ruth Gocrling’s prosecution obviously represents a threat not
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On March 13. Linda Morse, owner of the New Family Natural
Food Store, was arrested at her store on Wave Street in Monter-
ey and jailed for “practicing medicine without a license."

The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) had been planning
the arrest for at least six months, had dispatched agents to the
store equipped with concealed recording equipment, and had
sought to lure Linda into some action which might incriminate
her.

Linda, not pretending to be any kind ofdoctor, and knowing as
well the FDA’s long history of this kind of harassment, listened to
the agents’ requests for someting which might alleviate the pain of
some pretended ailments, and then simply referred the agentsto a
nationally advertised paperback book. Back to Eden, by Jethro
Kloss.

The agents then decided themselves, based on the recom-
mendations in this book, to bu/ several legal herb teas. On this
pretext, Linda was removed from her retail store without warn-
ing, placed under arrest, and taken to jail.

On these grounds, the State of California in the name of the
people of California, is prosecuting Linda.

For doing what a grocery' clerk does in offering aspirin for a
shopper’s headache, or what a shoe sales person does in recom-
mending corrective shoes to support a child’s low arches, Lim'a
Morse faces possible imprisonment and/or fines.

Aside from the apparent example of entrapment which this
governmental action presents, one wonders why Linda was select-
ed to play the guinea pig in this legal drama, and not the operator
of one of the larger food store chains.

If a store owner must remain mute when asked about the pro-
ducts in his store, or must first inquire whether (he person asking
the question isan undercover agent, then an assault on the rest of
our constitutionally safeguarded individual rights cannot be far
behind.

Linda Morse has done nothing wrong. She has harmed no one.
She is simply the innocent victim of a well-planned legal smoke-
screen.

If the FDA can take advantage of the vaguely defined statute
on which herarrest is based and is allowed to take court action to
set a legal precedent, it will mean the end of personal selection of
foods, and the birth of a system in which foods arc defined as
drugs, available only through strictly prescribed channels con-
trolled by the FDA, and whatever sectors influence th/FD A.

Citizensdo not have to be party to an action done in their name,
of which they disapprove.

Please give us your support. If everybody contributes a dollar
we can stop the FDA. Please send what you can.

Linda Morse/New Family Defense Fund
845 Wave St., Monterey, Calif. 93940

only to her but toeveryone who isinterested in the freedom to give
and receive information and advice on health and nutrition. It is
therefore essential that the constitutionality of this law be chal-
lenged. In order to do this successfully, the best possible legal
representation is an absolute necessity.

The costs in this unequal struggle of an individual against the
state promise to be very substantial. This is a test case with an
issue of vital concern to everyone. Funds arc urgently needed.

Committee for the Defense of Ruth M. Goerling
Post Office Box 932, Freedom, Calif. 95019
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Why Is the Senate Watergate Committee
Functioning As Part of the Cover-Up?

I. Knowledge Omitted from the Campus
I1. The Cover-Up

A. Concealing the motives
B. Witnesses not called
1. Martha Mitchell
2. Louis Tackwood
3. Tom Charles Huston
4. William Sullivan

1. Martial Law Without the Riots
A. Institutions to dismantle
B. The enemy list
C. The warfare state
D. Political prisoners of America

Introduction:

July 21, 1973 — Paul Krassner and 1 decided, to publish
Conspiracy Newsletter a year ago.

The arrests at the Watergate Hotel, and the magnitude of the
events taking place, occupied my year.

Nine years research into past government conspiracies and
previous election manipulations was the background for the
newsletter.

The Watergate witnesses, and evidence about the illegal en-
try into the Democratic National Headquarters, was a con-
tinuation of earlier investigative work.

One year later, with almost 700 subject files assembled on the
Watergate espionage operation. Conspiracy Newsletter is
finally getting started.

For those who subscribed a year ago and waited, thank you.

Many people asked me why, after many years of research, my
first published article was in The Realist?

The answer is simple.

| respect Paul Krassner. For ten years, | have subscribed to
The Realist.

Only the alternative press has been faithful to the freedoms wc
deserve.
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At a time when Deep Throat is making S50-million, indicat-
ing a desire and taste of free adults to choose their own enter-
tainment, the Supreme Court permits others to dictate what we
shall see or read.

*Nixon’s Supreme Court isa worse danger to our liberties than
sexual pleasures.

Freedom of the press, freedom to liveand to love is what the
struggle is all about. There arc hundreds of conspiracies taking
place. They arc all ordered from the White House.

Political assassinations, the killing of Presidential candi-
dates, is for the purpose of denying our maximum freedoms.

I. Knowledge Omitted from the Campus

The arrests at the Watergate Hotel in Washington D.C. took
most Americans by surprise. We had been educated with a
continuous series of denials that conspiracies at the White
House level could exist.

The news media, a major source of information, treat high le-
vel conspiracies with platitudes, indifference, and unimagina-
tive cover stories to conceal facts. Propaganda is an important
weapon of the fascist state. TV and the media are filled with
clandestine agents, some posing as liberal writers, whose pur-
pose is to break the credibility of researchers or discredit evi-
dence that would confirm conspiracies.1

Colleges and academic institutions have no courses on agent
provocateurs or how to recognize espionage operations.2When
the accurate history of the 1960’ and 70’s is written about vio-
lence in the U.S., facts will reveal that government provoca-
teurs created most of the violence. A series of our own Reichstag
Fires was the justification later fora domestic intelligence unitto
deny our liberties guaranteed by the Constitution.3

There is no information available on ways to protect society
from sabotage. The Watergate Affair exposes how investiga-
torsand the Dept, ofJustice work with theirespionage agents in
acts which amount to treason.4 Top lawyers of the nation, in-
stead of obeying the law, worked in collusion with corporate
interests for purposes of power and profits.5G. Gordon Liddy,
counsel for the White House and CREEP, helped create the fa-
mous April 7, 1972 law which concealed donations and illegal
corporate Financing.
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History classes devote little lime to the evils of fascism. They
never teach specific methods which bring the condition into
existence. Classrooms in the U.S. never discuss the edicts of
repression in Greece caused by the military junta in 1967. A
coup d'etat, planned and financed in the U.S.. would be
informative to study as a protection against identical possibili-
ties in this country.

What is avoided is a clear understanding of clandestine and
covert acts and how they are carried out.B8The electoral process
and our civil liberties have been sabotaged. White House docu-
ments exist to prove this fact.7

The various techniques utilized to gain control of the popula-
tion or to arrange conspiracies are being illustrated in the
Watergate exposures. There will be pressure to halt the televis-
ed hearings or to detract from their significance because this is
the first time we have been given even a peek at spies and the
methods used to protect their operations. They are not difficult
to follow. Once the agents and their procedures are identified
and described, there may be a better chance to end the
continuous and systematic infiltration taking place.

Clandestine assignments arc composed of a combination of
acts whose main ingredients arc secrecy and lies. Secrecy is
necessary because most of the assignments and methods arc ille-
gal. The operations, when discovered, arc covered by lies.*

The patterns of illegal, criminal spy operations, with certain
agents reappearing in many of the same assignments, become
more complicated every day, all CIA operations:

FBI reports indicating Frank Sturgis a friend of Lee Harvey Os-
wald and David Ferric. Sturgis had a Miami arsenal of wea-
pons. and original plans were to kill JFK in Miami in 1963.

6. Plans to assassinate the President of Panama in 1971. Hunt
and Liddy. working in White House, used Operation Intercept
as their cover. The President of Panama was not “cooperating”
in control of narcotics, and one of their jobs was to kill him.

7.1TT, CIA, Chile,and Watergate. William Broc, CIA, offer-
ed FIT to help “create economic chaos in Chile." Broc, as CIA
agent, combed their files to determine if CIA was involved in
Watergate. This cleaning out is identical to L. Patrick Gray
looking for evidence in the FBI reports. Hunt and Liddy, while
in the White House, worked for the CIA and ITT at the same
time, hleping out with Dita Beard’s kidnapping and hospitali-
zation in Denver.

8. Ellsberg. Dr. Fielding robbery. Hunt, Liddy, members of
the Cuban committee working for the CIA. Gen. Robert Cush-
man supplied the cameras, film developing, disguises, safe
houses.

None ofthese people, including the President, believe they are
breaking any laws. Certain members of the Defense Intelli-
gence Agency. CIA, Division V of the FBI, Secret Service, arm-
ed forces and National Security Council have been warfare Kill-
ers and war criminals fora long time. They are now conducting
para-military warfare inside the U.S.

Murders, conspiracies, entrapment, assaults, false imprison-
ments are part of warfare. Unsuspecting citizens are taken by

l. 1954 assassination of President Jacobo Arbenz Guzmangurprise because they did not realize that w'hitc America was the

Guatamala. E. Howard Hunt, Frank Sturgis involved in this
murder, identical to Kennedy assassination in 1963. After the
President was killed, an “extreme leftist," “lone assassin" was
murdered.

2 Richard Nixon, 4th Crisis, Latin American tour, cold war
propaganda. VVotes were lagging for Eisenhower and Dick. The
CIA arranged this tour, now easily staged for “hard on Com-
munists” line. Nixon briefed by CIA; told by Allen Dullesof in-
telligence estimates of anti-American demonstration. Col. Ver-
non Walters. CIA. Nixon’s interpreter. Gen. Robert Cushman,
CIA, gave rundowns of reactions to riots. E. Howard Hunt in
Latin America, attached to CIA station. 1956-60. His cover was
advisor to Defense Dept, in Latin America.

3. U-2 flight over USSR, to sabotage summit conference for
cold war. Allen Dulles, working with James McCord, who
found and identified the Soviet intelligence agent questioned by
the airmen. Lee Hprvey Oswald, Navy Intelligence, trained in
radar at Atsjugi Air Base w'hcrc U-2s monitored. Oswald
watching for possible vapor .trails over USSR. E. Howard Hunt
was engaged during the 50s in the U-2 spy plane project. Hear-
ranged the takeoffand landing flights for CIA aircraft.

4. Bay of Pigs. Richard Nixon in charge of that operation,
wanted nothing wrong. Bob Cushman and Howard Hunt had
private phones into the White House. When Hunt needed his
contacts, Nixon and Cushman had been supplanted by
Kennedy in the While House. Bernard Barker, Frank Sturgis.
Martinez. Gonzales and the entire Watergate cast of Miami Cu-
bans working during Bay of Pigsand in Watergate operation. In
My Six Crisis Nixon took credit for the covert training of Cuban
exiles by the CIA.

5. 1963 assassination of President Kennedy. Jose Romero,
soldier of fortune, approached by hired assassination team from
the U.S. which planned to kill Kennedy during his 1961 visit to
France. Romero definitely remembers Frank Sturgis as one of
the representatives from the U.S. James McCord, according to
Louis Tackwood, was in Dallas the day Kennedy was shot, and
flown afterwards to the Carribean. The National Archives have
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enemy. Blacks. Indians and Chicanos have known for a long

Opening Statement by Senator Sam J. Ervin Jr. Before
the Senate Select Committee on Presidential Campaign
Activities — May 17, 1973, the first day of the hearings

What they were seeking to steal was not the jewels, money or other
property of American citizens, butsomething much more valuable, their
most precious heritage, the right to vote in a free election.

The Select Committee must probe into assertions that the very sys-
tem itself has been subverted and its foundations shaken.

If the allegations that have been made in the wake of the Watergate
Affair are substantiated, there has been a very serious subversion of the
integrity oT the electoral process, and the committee will be obliged to
consider the manner in which such a subversion affects the continued
existence of this nation as a representative democracy, and how, if we
are to survive, such subversions may be prevented in the future.

Following the Watergate break-in, there has been a massive attempt
to cover up all the improper activities.

Kvidence that has surfaced has cast a black cloud of distrust over our
entire society. Our citizens do not know whom to believe, and many of
them have concluded that all the processes of government have become
so compromised that honest government has been rendered impossible.

The health, if not the survival of our social structure and of our form
of government requires the most candid and public investigation of all
the evidence and of all the accusations that have been leveled at any per-
sons. at whatever level, who were engaged in the 1972 campaigns.

My colleagues on the Committee and | arc determined to uncover all
the relevant facts surrounding these matters, and to spare no one, what-
ever his station in life may be, in our efforts to accomplish this goal.

The American people are looking to this committee for enlighten-
ment and guidance regarding the details of the allegations regarding the
subversion of our electoral and political process.

The purpose of thiscommittee isto provide full and open public testi-
mony in order that the nation can proceed toward the healing of wounds
(hat now afflict the body politic.

The nation and history itself are watching us.

We cannot fail our mission.
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time the open warfare against their existence. Watergate is an
education into a civil war which is not likely to go away without
a struggle. Expect a counter-attack by the White House and
even the armed forces if necessary.

A web of conspiracies has been strangling this nation. The
names, departments and chains of command are being identi-
fied.

Political conspiracies arc divided into three sections. There
are those who carry out the assignment, others who cover it up,
and the collusion of the courts that protect both the conspira-
tors and those who come later and cover up the crimes.

The Watergate Affair, being a government top-level conspira-
cy, falls into that category.

The Senate Select Committee on Presidential Campaign
Activities is part of the cover-up.

Their structure and methods arc reminiscent of the fictitious
Warren Report- their colleagues put together for us ten years
ago.

Arc these errors caused by ignorance or stupidity or com-
licity? The question wasasked to Haldeman ifany of the demon-
strators were known to be paid for by McGovern or Wallace or
other opponents. The question that wasn’tasked was how much
Republican money paid provocateurs to defecate or urinate on
the streets in Miami. There is evidence existing that they were in
fact hired including a female FBI agent that was swimming nude
at the convention.

Avre the errors only one more con game upon citizens deserv ¢
ing better than what they arc getting from the witnesses?

Spiro Agnew praised the Watergate hearings. He said they are
“evidence that our society is more open than ever." Instead of
secret hearings, they are open and allow us to watch the cover-
up. Ifthey were doing their job with ah understanding of the
magnitude of espionage, Agnew would be investigated at the
same time because he is part of the problem: the selection of our
candidates being forced upon us via created violence and mur-
ders.

The election sabotage that took place, and the desperation to
win the 1972elections, had as much to do with Agnew support-
ers as Nixon associates.

James Earl Ray, alleged assassin of Martin Luther King, said
“King had to be killed in an election year." It was Agnew who
gained from this conspiracy. He had close tics with the FBI, was
prompted into an anti-black law and order position for election
purposes.

Greek military money, expressly for Agnew, running into
millions, secretly stashed away, determines our foreign policy in
the Middle East. Oil profits and military interests have pushed
Agnew into the Vice-Presidency.
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(These CIA Surplus Items Were
Written and Produced by John
Francis Putnam with the Aid of
Steve Heller)

Military Occupation Scrip. Unlimited quantities
of this scrip, attractively printed in the language
and currency of every Non-Aligned Nation in
the world. These are fresh, crisp bills, suitable
for adding to your money collection. Think of
it; you can own one billion inflationary United
States Military Occupation Dollars from any
Third World country of your choice for only
$3.00, post paid. Add 354 for a selection of
plastic "small-change" token coins.

The Constitution made no provisions forelection robberies or
clandestine agents as candidates. President Nixon, intelligence
agencies and the armed forces were denying our Constitutional
rights, then expect an orderly Constitutional succession of
power.

This situation isthe first of its kind in the U.S. and should be
tested by popular election. Senator Muskie or Kennedy would
defeat Agnew tomorrow, indicating he does not represent the
majority in this democracy.

The election was a fraud, and Agnew supportersand finances
were directly involved in the Watergate Affair through Mullen
Associates and specific White House aides.

There are many methods of conducting a lengthy, volumi-
nously and costly investigation withouteverservingtruth orjust-
tice. While giving the appearance of attempting to solve Phase 1
of the Watergate Affair, there isa basic dishonesty exhibited in
the unskilled procedures.

No wonder American citizens are as confused about the
White House espionage squad as they were a year ago. The Sen-
ate Select Committee, by making many errors, increases the
problem of solving sabotage and conspiracy. Some of these
include:

1 Wrong witnesses called. Last July, 1972, it was obvious that
Al Wong, the Secret Service man who hired James McCord,
should be a major witness. When it was disclosed by Alexander
Butterfield that the White House was bugged, Al Wongappcar-
cd to be holding the tapes. Wong and McCord were close asso-
ciates.

Other men were at the Watergate, and fled to Miami. They
were never arrested or called as witnesses.

Donald Segretti was "one of fifty agents.” Where arc the other
forty-nine?

Who controls the Washington prison that sent men in to beat
up Liddy and Hunt the night before they testified before the
Grand Jury?

There were two guards on duty at the Watergate Hotel on
June 17, 1972. One “went home early.” Who arranged that?

The Watergate Hotel manager knew the espionage team. He
was told to "shut up" and never interviewed.

2. Wrong questions are asked. When the correct witness ison
the stand, the wrong questions are asked. It isimpossible to shed
light on a problem made more difficult by the roundabout me-
thods of covering up.

3. Change of subject. When the right witness is on the stand,
and the correct question is asked, there isa quick change ofsub-
ject to obstruct information that might flow. After a Senate
vote, many good questions are dropped. The Warren
Commission went “off the record.” The voting pattern servesto
break up the testimony and evidence.

The Realist


http://www.ep.tc/reallst/95
http://www.ep.tc/realist

The REALIST Issue Number 95 - Dec, 1972 - Page 16
scans of this entire Issue found at: http://www.ep.tc/realist/95

4. Questions are made out in advance. There is a narrow
inquiry into Phase I, the Watergate, which can't be limited, the
hotel entry is part of the entire “plumbers operation.” They can't
be separated. Their plans for violence and provocateurs has to
do with the Democratic offices entry.

The John Kennedy assassination, and Jack Ruby’s killing Os-
wald, were one espionage plan. The Warren Commission, and
Ruby's trial, attempted to have the public believe these were
separate, isolated events. In the same manner, the Senate
Committee and witnesses involved want to separate the
“caper” from the “horror story.” Both involved identical plans,
funds and a team that worked together for many years doing the
same kinds of sabotage.

5. Time limits imposed. The restoration of confidence in
government will come about by delving into all leads, not being
limited by a clock or calendar. The testimony of Tony Ulase-
wicz's other assignments was cut off for "lack bf time.” Hours
spent on repetitious questions. Important matters are limited in
subject matter by a 10-minutc agreement.

6. Not equipped to recognize or question espionage agents.
The Senate Committee asks serious questions without clari-
fying the lies, perjuries, denials as being part of the operation.

There are other ways of locating evidence of sabotage.

Witnesses are allowed face-saving devices without being ex-
posed as employed in intelligence work. If Ulasewicz had been
allowed to describe his “thirty-five assignments for the White
House,” a conclusion, not so humorous, would be drawn. The
most serious witness became the comedian.

7. No cross-examination. Mild discrepancies, important, are
ignored. James McCord said he had “nothing to do with the
Kennedy assassination,” which may be a fact regarding not
shooting the weapon. His presence in Dallas on that day, or
identification of the plane that took him to the Caribbean would
be helpful in describing some of McCord’s duties for the CIA.

8. Documentary evidence exits to illustrate charges of trea-
son and conspiracy. Arthur Bremer's second gun. found in his
car. and bullets taken from the Wallace shooting, could be com-

ared.

P The White House inter-agency espionage operational plans
could bfc shared with the public to understand the minds in the
Oval Office.

Louis Tackwood’s tapes of the planned San Diego martial
law for 1972 could be played and exposed.

In spite of the White House logs being denied for examina-
tion, and massive evidence desroyed. there is enough evidence
available to purge an administration that remains in power.

9. Deaths, threats ofdeath, assaults. The Senate Committee is
not interested in the jail problems, local police and CIA work-
ing together. G. Gordon Liddy was hurt in a prison fight the
night before his appearance at the Grand Jury.

E. Howard Hunt was beat up the night before his Grand Jury
testimony in May, 1973.

Evidence of sabotaging Mrs. Dorothy's Hunt's plane is si-
leneed.

Questions are not asked Tony Ulasewicz regarding the death
of Mary Jo Kopechne. What hour did he arrive on the island?
Was he there before she was killed? One security guard saw
Mary Jo asleep in back ofthe carat 1l p.m. Who was that? The
guard was giving press interviews to Time. Colson’s outlet for
smear.

James McCord stated he had “worked for the CIA long
enough ” to know he could be killed once he was sent to prison.
The phone call McCord received from Tony Ulasewicz.
attempting to force a "guilty plea” like the others, was inter-
preted as a threat to his family and himself.
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The only member of the Senate Committee who shows the
appropriate disgust and anger is Senator Weicker. He seems to
understand clandestine operations and the slimey arrogance of
super-patriots who disgrace our nation.

Members of the Black Caucus once asked then-Attorney
General John Mitchell about future programs. He answered,
“Don’t listen to what |say. watch what 1do.” This same advice
would serve investigators solving conspiracy operations. Con-
cealing and covering by lies and perjury will never expose the
crimes committed by this team.

Going back to the John Kennedy assassination, to Robert
Kennedy's murder and the other tragedies they arranged, the
bullets, autopsies, medical reports all exist to prove con-
spiracies. It is time to examine evidence and not ask the masters
of subversion for answers to stupid questions. Watergate has
logs, evidence, arrangements for Miami, tapes of treason. Get
them out in the open, and wc shall be the judge.

Senator Ervin said the “government was subverted,” "citi-
zens do not know whom to believe,” "the processes of govern-
ment were compromised.”

Don’t depend on liarsor Senate Committees who arc guilty of
covering the Nixon Administration they are criticizing. Just
produce the documents and homicide records. We can figure
out what is happening for ourselves and save time and money
wasted in perpetuating a dying system of government. There is
noplace for the CIA, DIA. intelligence operations or their con-
tinuous infiltrations.

The Senate Committee is arranging the witnesses and ques-
tions in such a way that little can beaccomplished to prevent the
continuation of the existing military junta.

II. The Cover-Up

A. Concealing the motives

The Iwenly-million-doliar question: More than a year has
passed since the illegal entry into the Democratic National
Headquarters in Washingtom D.C. The motive for this assign-
ment. planned almost six months in advance, remains the care-
fully guarded secret. There is reason for this silence, and it isnot
the lack of evidence. The men who planned the operation, as
well as those who covered it up. and the courts investigating,
wish to keep this important information secret. Why?

Racism, prejudices and fearsofehangingthestatusquoareso
deeply embedded into our ruling class that there is a silent and
tacit agreement to protect each other. "National security" may
be used to soften the inquiry, as it was used to lock up the evi-
dence on the John Kennedy assassination.

It is impossible, the way the courts arc constructed, to force
any revelations that would damage the existing power struc-
ture. If Richard Nixon moves out of office. Spiro Agnew moves
inand Ronald Reagan will follow him. The depth ofcorruption
and links to the sabotage will not be touched. A power base of
manipulations and political dishonesty, which funds all these
men. remains.

My Lai. Kent State. Attica, riots at Isla Vista, the San Quen-
tin shootout, politic:!l assassinations, illegal bombings. Jack-
son State and a hundred other conspiracies arc covered up.

Exposing white America, the so-called law and order people,
as being burglars, wiretappers, forgers, extortionists and thieves
can only go so far. They can obstructjustice, get refunds on ille-
gal donations. commit perjury and violate election laws. To pro-
secute them as murderers, criminals or conspirators never
happens. Treason is not even whispered when that is exactly
what is taking place.

Last year was the most important election in U.S. history.
Corporations and conglomerates were meeting a crisis. Special
interests such as ITT. Howard Hughes, oil companies, warfare
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Canvas Bags Filled with Live Cats. Effective
psychological preparation of emotionally un-
stable military recruits when they are faced
with their first session of bayonet practice, has
been cleverly met by the introduction of this
device which allows the un-tested soldier the
completely realistic "simulation" of actual bat-
tle conditions experienced when thrusting a
sharp bayonet into a living adversary, complete
with screams and gushing blood. Each bag
comes complete with 20 live cats. Designed for
one time use only. $30.00 each.

contractors and aerospace industries always selected the Presi-
dent and Vice-President, but this victory was vital in 1972.

Certain countries were getting more active against conglo-
merates. Kidnappings and confiscations could escalate. The
ITT. inside the USA. was almost divested of interests this Ad-
ministration saved for them.

Chile's President Salvadorc Allende spelled matters out in the
UN. He charged the “ITT. CIA and armed forces with creating
economic chaos, altering free elections, instigating civil warand
wanting to create a military dictatorship.* This pattern of cold
war manipulation that we enforced in over 90 countries could be
halted with a new administration.*

Warfare industries were in trouble without a Nixon-Agnew
victory. The war in Asia could escalate after elections. The
Middle East is waiting for their U.S.-lomented war next. A
Democratic president might change the course of U.S.
economic dependence on warfare hardware into domestic
needs. There is less profit in building the U.S. than in bombing
Cambodia or importing and distributing narcotics with CIA
transportation. The drug traffic from Asia involves more
billions than military profits.

Anti-war protestors, particularly Vietnam Veterans, were an
embarrassment.

Domestic programs were to be solved with Caspar “the Ax*
or Maick “the Hatchet” once the ‘mandate’ was declared.10

The election victory of Nixon-Agnew was ordered. Maurice
Stans went around telling the corporations exactly what per-
centage to pul into the till. The foot soldiers then put the money
to work.

Over $60,000,000 went into Republican funds to re-elect the
incumbent and popular President.

Anot icrS20.000.000 secret cash — much in consecutive S100
bills  was set aside to be sure they won the elections by any
means necessary. That is where the motives for the Watergate
Hotel entry start to become important. The conservative
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Republican, the old guard traditional politician who can win or
lose elections fairly, becomes separated from the espionage
operation. Some money goes into legal spending such as TV
time, office expenses, etc. And some money goes into the illegal
guarantee of success when the polls close.

There arc a lot of reasons for keeping political donations to
the President and Vice-President secret.11 None of them except
the obvious illegal discretions require such complicated sec-
recy. Ifmore than favorsarc expected, and serious crimes will be
committed to select candidates through violence, ail techniques
of secret funding are employed.

The $5300 in consecutive S100 bills found on the Watergate
espionage squad were part of the complicated funding.

Potential candidates for the 1968 and 1972 elections were eli-
minated by murder, a created scandal involving a murder,
attempted murder, forgery and harassments. These favors re-
quire a lot of money that will never be accounted for. They
might be the missing millions.

Twenty million dollars was delivered in cash, some of it deli-
berately burned to conceal consecutive numbers. Donations
were hidden in 45-90 dummy fronts that never existed. Money
was pulled from “1968” accounts in Mexico, the Middle East.
Switzerland. Los Angeles. New York. Houstonand other cities.

Complicated money washings went through 5 or 6opcrations.
travelled from Texas, to Mexico. Houston, Washington. Flori-
da. and back to Washington. Safes with cash were inside the
White House, Maurice Stans' offices and elsewhere. Consecu-
tive S100 bills were passed in suitcases, unmarked envelopes, put
in desk drawers while the recipient left the room.

Money was given to unknown persons, for unknown rea-
sons. from unknown sources, left in telephone booths, passed
inside taxicabs, near airports, handed on park benches, in hotel
lobhies, on golf courses, and donated from some kind friends
from the Philippines.

A super secret account was located in Bcthesda. Maryland
under the name of Henry' Buchanan, brother of White House
aide Patrick Buchanan.1l

Donald Nixon made two secret trips to Greece for a S10-
million loan from Marriott Corporation during the time Repub-
licans were seeking money to silence the Watergate defen-
dants.I’ Martha Mitchell was delivered to the Marriott New
York apartment, a la Dita Beard, after herabduction from Cali-
fornia and her famous call to Helen Thomas of UP1'4

Martha said she would be getting S2.000.000 for a book —a
silence bribe. Marina Oswald was offered S125.000 to write a
book; it was never published. Howard Hunt sent a message to
the White House, saying he was writing a book. Thisisa typical
clandestine message in seeking a bribe.

Edward Nixon, the President's other brother, flew a helicop-
ter from New York to New Jersey to discuss the famous
S200.000 that was delivered at the airport, donated from Ro-
bert Vesco. Nixon made the decision of whether it would be
check or cash.5

The Federal Reserve System distributes money to commer-
cial banks, but were unable to trace S10.000 found in consecu-
tive S100 bills marked with the serial “B.” The money, found in
Mrs. Dorothy Hunt's purse after her fatal airplane crash, was
not recorded in New York. “Unlike other areas, this bank does
not keep track of the serial numbers.” 16

At least eight persons connected with the mysterious fund-
ing alone have been Killed since last year.I7 Provocateurs had
been paid those CIA consecutive $100 bills in Miami, and reser-
vations were made for demonstrtions to take place.

Where was all this secret money going?

There is a way to find out.

Tony Ulasewicz. money bagman for Herbert Kalmbach(who
wears gloves when he handles the cash), was paid S100.000 in
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1969 by the President’s attorney. Other years he earned $22,000
plus “expenses.”

Ulascwicz has a New York accent.

Arthur Bremer, arrested for the Wallace shooting and re-
cently denied a re-trial, was seen in Michigan, talking politics
with a man 62", weighing 220 Ibs., “with a New York accent.”

Maryland police stopped a suspect after the George Wallace
shooting, described as 62", weighing 220 Ibs., in a light blue
Cadillac.

Arthur Bremer was spending a lot of money forairplane tick-
ets, the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel in New York, nights at the ITT
Sheraton Plaza in Maryland, and with a CIA agent in Toronto
at the Lord Elgin.

There was money spent in the Wallace shooting.

A New York accent, to be identified, should have been inter-
viewed. Did any of the secret $20,000,000 go into the Wallace
shooting?

Was Ulascwicz with Arthur Bremer?

Did any of the Kalmbach $400,000 from New Y orkio defeat
Wallace get to Maryland police, agents; were these funds in-
volved in the Wallace shooting? Complicated money transac-
tions were taking place, secure and secret; 1972 was almost se-
cure for an election victory.

J. Edgar Hoover, who strenuously objected to the illegal
sabotage, was dead.

The Domestic Intelligence Agency intended to have the
Director of the FBI as their head. Hoover objected to every sec-
tion of it, so it was unlikely they could proceed if he were alive.

L.JPatrick Gray, on the other hand, was a master of stopping
all investigations into Justice Dept, conspiracies. He quclched
the Watergate Affair by burning documents, closed the ITT
case, halted the Reuban Salazar and Jerie Lee Amie murder
investigations in Los Angeles, stopped the Isla Vistariot investi-
gation, halted the Teamsters-Mafia wiretapping regarding
health plans in California. Gray fired U.S. Attorney Robert
Meyer for refusing to prosecute the Ellsberg case. A few months
later, after being afraid to oppose this administration as the
“kiss of death,” Robert Meyer was dead.

J. Edgar Hoover did not have an autopsy. His body was not
removed in a hearse. There was no indication of poor health.
There is reason to exhume his remains; the possibility of poison
in the apple pie might be discovered as his last American supper.

Mary Jo Kopechne, former secretary of Senator Smathers of
Florida, was dead, eliminating Senator Ted Kennedy as a can-
didate.

George Wallace’s 20-26,000,000 votes were back in Republi-
can ballot boxes.

Senator Muskie was sufficiently smeared to lose the New
Hampshire primaries.

Senator Humphrey, followed by Sedan Chair 2 and Sedan
Chair 88, was well under control, with a few smear letters
thrown in for bad luck.

Senator Eagleton’s hospital records were with John Ehrlich-
man, probably in the same drawer as the illegal bugging tapes
ordered by Henry Kissinger and General Haig.

Things were looking pretty good for the GOP — but.

What would happen if the Democrats came up with a com-
bination of candidates who could still win the election in 1972?
John Mitchell testified that “in June 1972 the Republicans were
not sure of an election victory.” And Ehrlichman testified that
the surveillance changed from Muskie to McGovern and Ted
Kennedy.

The only alternative remaining, to be sure of winning, would
be the anticipated alternate solution which had been planned
since the fall of 1971.
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The CIA. Litton Industries and U.S.-aid tested a coup d'etat
in Greece that isstill going strong. The CIA, FBI and the armed
forces practiced in the Philippines dictatorship only months be-
fore our election.

The CIA, DIA, FBI, armed forces, Internal Security. Secret
Service and Justice Dept, would be called to help create martial
law.

All the nation’s top law enforcement agencies and top agents
were cooperating in the Watergate operation. They aided in the
cover-up, and they influence investigations now.

No matter what is claimed to the contrary, there is no way
such an extravaganza of characters could be assembled for a
“stupid” and “uninformative” adventure.

The highly trained team of Hunt, Liddyand McCord werear-
rested.

The nation came to a standstill and created an economic cri-
sis abroad.

All investigative and government agencies were tainted and
involved in the scandals of committing crimes or covering up.

The entry into the Democratic Headquarters was almost the
culmination of two years preparations for assuring the 1972
election mandate.

The White House “plumbers” worked closely, in every CIA
operation, with the armed forces and investigative agencies.

James McCord finally feared a CIA takeover identical to
Nazi Germany intelligence operations.

J. Edgar Hoover feared the CIA takeover and destruction of
all civil liberties. Hoover didn’t mind helping a couple of
Kennedys get killed, or the systematic slaughter of 28 Black
Panthers, with more in prison today. He drew the lineat martial
law. He would not have allowed George Wallace to be
assassinated.

Richard Nixon was in trouble, according to Andrew Tully,
Hoover’s friend. He became surrounded with the same CIA
McCord and Hoover feared. “He needed me around to protect
him from those people around him”— stated by Hoover in Jan-
uary, 1972 — may be the reason Hoover had to be killed. This

The Plumbers Connection

David Young was working under Henry Kissingcrat ihe National Se-
curity Council. He was transferred to head the White House “plumb-
ers” unit under John Ehrlichman.

Young went to then-Director of the CIA Richard Helms to get a psy-
chiatric profile of Daniel Ellsberg. Helms admitted that although the
original 1947 charter of the CIA forbade them to engage in domestic in-
telligence, Young insisted that it was very important to the White House,
thatJhe assignment came from Ehrlichman’s highest authority, and so
the request was granted.

Helms testified that he put Young in touch with Howard Osborn to
prepare the profile. FBI documents, included in the Warren Com-
mission Hearings on the Assassination of John F. Kennedy (Vol. XXV,
pp. 1-60), show that Albert Osbom, also known as John Howard
Bowen, sat on the bus with Lee Harvey Oswald going to Mexico on
September 26, 1963.

Osborn ran a missionary school in Mexico which wasa front for poli-
tical assassins sent all over the world. A Mr. Osborn purchased 1,000
“Hands Off Cuba” leaflets which Oswald distributed in New Orleans
with Carlos Brienguicr.

During the 1972 election campaign, Spiro Agncw is alleged to have
taken several trips to New Orleans to meet with this same Carlos Bricn-
guier who had provideid Lee Harvey Oswald’s“Communist” cover story
by distributing leaflets paid for by Osborn.

Howard/Osborn is a name used in a previous assassination and
reappears now as the contact man between the CIA and the White
House, working with William Sullivan of Division V of the FBI in the
“plumbers” — the interagency spy group that even the late J. Edgar
Hoover felt was a threat to the nation's civil liberties. Hoover had ob-
jected to the CIA using the FBI as a front for domestic intelligence.
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would fit into the assassination plans for Nixon in the fall of
1972.

The top intelligence and law enforcement agents involved in
the Watergate and gestapo operations were:

—Acting Director of the FBI, L. Patrick Gray

—William Sullivan, Division V, FBI, Domestic Security

—Assistant Attorney General Robert Mardian

—Director of the CIA Richard Helms

—Deputy Director of CIA, Lt. Gen Cushman

—Deputy Director of CIA, Vernon Walters

—Henry Kissinger, National Security Council

—General Alexander Haig, National Security Council, now
Chief of Staff, White House

—Inspector General of CIA, William Broc

—Assistant Attorney General Henry A. Peterson

W. Clement Stone, who contributed nearly $7-million to
Republicans since 1968, said, “I felt this provided the one chance
in a lifetime to change the course of history for the better.” The
feeling of necessity and desperation he expressed — translated
into “better” business, | suppose — was identical to the Attor-
ney General and others who knowingly broke many laws in or-
der to preserve the Presidency for two special men.

The illegal entry, for the second time, in the Democratic
offices required nine men, a hotel room across the street, special
“Gemstone” files, and a complicated system of passing the mes-
sage to the Oval Office.

When five men were arrested on June 17, 1972, the frantic
telephone calls, denials and secret meetings took place. White
House aides were burningdocumentsand carting away file box-
es, opening Hunt’s desk and safe.

The Gemstone papers had to be destroyed immediately.

The conversations taken from Mr. Oliver’s telephone, copies
of the tapes, has to be destroyed.

If conversations were “foolish and stupid, unfruitful,” why
not produce the tapes to show what an ill-advised adventure this
was? That could have cleared the air.

But what if provocateurs had entered the Democratic offices
— Republican spies registered as Democrats such as Donald Se-
gretti? Republicans had sent friends into the office before to se-
cure roon\ plans for the Miami conventions.

What if the telephones were used to discuss radicals, planned
violence in Miami, or the intention to kill President Nixon?

James McCord testified that they were there “to look for
information if President Nixon were secure in Miami.” In
clandestine operations, when you “look” .youplant evidence. 18

G. Gordon Liddy received campaign funds to determine what
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A Complete Russian Small Town, Authentic in
Every Detail, reconstructed in a secret moun-
tain retreat near Green River, Wyoming. This
settlement duplicates a Typical Soviet Russian
Village, complete with a Park of Culture and
Rest with statues of Lavrenti Bereia, Krupskaya
and an Anonymous Hero of Soviet Labor; an
NKVD office; a Komsompl Basketball Court,
two Worker's Children's Creches, A Museum of
Socialist Realism Picture Postcards, a Commu-
nal 17" (diagonally measured) Television Set
and a Young Pioneer Euthanasia Center. Since
all the C.ILA. agents we trained in this center
have since been captured and shot, we have de-
cided to place it on the disposal list. 400 Acres
with 70 buildings for only $85,000!

to do if the crazies made an attack on the President.

Louis Tackwood, agent provocateur 9 years with the Los
Angeles Police, was hired to join this White House espionage
squad for planned violence in San Diego. Those plans included
“getting Nixon” after martial law was declared.?

Miami and San Diego police never worked security prob-
lems with Hunt, Liddy or McCord.

The Secret Service, FBI, armed forces could protect Presi-
dent Nixon without this secret espionage group. Andrew
Topping, a wealthy New Yorker, had been making arrange-
ments to murder Nixon between the nomination and the elec-
tion.D

The very secretive AL Wong of Secret Service (he hired James
McCord) and Alexander Butterfield knew every room Richard
Nixon entered via the bugging devices. McCord, Hunt and
Liddy could receive messages from Wong. Dwight Chapin.
Nixon’s appointment secretary, has been silent about Topping.
Nobody mentions his name.

If conversations were produced after the planned events, mar-
tial law or Nixon’s assassination, the anti-war protestors, radi-
cals, McCovern supporters would be blamed.

G. Gordon Liddy proposed illegal kidnappings of radicals un-
til after the elections. This other method would be legal, order-
ed by the armed forces. All the voices against future wars or
domestic repressions would be in prison.

Internal Security provided the lists of desired political acti-
vists. They worked with James McCord every day in the spring
before the Watergate arrests. The White House emergency ser-
vice exists today. McCord’s links have been silenced and ig-
nored. In The PoliticsofLying. David Wise describes McCord’s
important position with the military reserve unit. Special Analy-
sis Division, with his preparation of a national watch-list.

The martial law plan would secure thepresidency for selected
agents Nixon and Agnew, silence protestors, and clear the way
for a list of domestic strangulations upon civil liberties.

Many important witnesses who could shed light on the com-
plicated motives for entry into the Democratic offices will never
be called before the Senate Committee or by Special Prosecu-
tor Archibald Cox unless we continue to expose their cover-up
roles.

Sherman Skolnick, independent investigator from Chicago,
has kept alive the facts about possible sabotage of United Air-
lines flight 553 with Mrs. Hunt killed. Other information and
witnesses will be forced into the open ifenough people demand
the truths be told.
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B. Witnesses not called

1. Martha Mitchell

Who’s afraid of Martha Mitchell?

White House documents signed by President Nixon were re-
ferred to as exhibiting a “gestapo mentality” by Senator Ervin.

Louis Tackwood said the Los Angeles Police Dept., connect-
ed to the White House special squad, wanted a “gestapo.”

Fascism isn’t a piece of paper.

The treatment of Martha Mitchell, up to the present time,
exemplifies what dictatorship is about.

The cover-up and refusal to insist on her telling the full story is
identical to the gestapo kangaroo courts. The Senate Com-
mittee is protecting the guilty. In California, after the arrests,
she might know who was involved in the cover-up. At least se-
ven people directly involved in the Watergate entry, planned
months earlier, were with the Mitchells in California.

Kidnapping: Serious charges were made by Martha about
being “kidnapped.” When she called for help, the telephone was
tom from the wall. All communications were removed. Only
non-English-spcaking persons entered her room. She was forci-
bly detained while her husband used their Washington D.C.
apartment for clandestine meetings. Robert Mardian and Fred
LaRue were meeting with Mitchell June 19, 1972 while Martha
was forced to remain in California.

Private Armies: The White House hired private thugs to take
care of demonstrators. “Unsalaried” police travelled with
Nixon, tore down signs in Illinois. Private cop Tony Ulasewicz
worked on a salary of $22,000 for political espionage. What pri-
vate police force, four men, were called to contain Martha?
Steve King couldn’t handle her alone. She said there were five
men. Hotel staff said they couldn’t be responsible. California
police and the FBI didn’t come in. Where do the private guards
come from?

Assault: Herbert Kalmbach, Nixon’s attorney, took Mrs.
Mitchell to the hospital. Strangers were occupying her room.
Her body was very badly bruised in many places. Hospital re-
cords were not subpoenaed to see what care she required. Mar-
tha asked why the men who detained her were not arrested. They
are not only not exposed, but promoted. Steve King, who did
most of the damage, became Chief of Security for CREEP.

Mental illness: To this day, Martha is made to seem drunk,
stupid, deranged. A psychiatric profile from the CIA is spread
around. Like Jim Garrison, Dita Beard or Marguerite Oswald,
when certain persons know too much about government con-
spiracies, they have to be discredited.

Bribery, blackmail: When Howard Hunt wanted money for
silence, he said he was “going to write a book." Martha was
offered S2,000,000 for a book. John Mitchell will never say any-
thing to embarrass President Nixon. The book money could
help support them for a few years.

Safe-Houses: Martha couldn’t go back to her Washington
apartment after the arrests. Moving her into the Marriott apart-
ment in New York following the disclosures indicates the deep
involvement of the high officials. That was no reason to dis-
lodge a family, in an election year, when her husband would still
be working with the President every day.

Protection of the guilty: No testimony taken from Martha.
She said she could "name names.” The phony investigators want
her far removed. She will spoil the illusion of inquisitiveness.
The real facts remain hidden in spite of the good TV show.

FBI arc protected: Why were FBI men in her room? She
didn’t do anything wrong. Martha said her room in California
was filled with the FBI. Did she mean John Mitchell, L. Patrick
Gray. William Sullivan, or other members of the team?

Promotions: The guilty get promotions for their coopera-
tion. Steve King, former employee of Senator Gurney of the
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Senate Committee, earned $18,000 a year working for him. He
had a security clearance working in the Justice Department.
Mitchell “loved King like a son.” Steve King is now inthe Dept,
of Agriculture. Do they send out any of the thugs, who assault-
ed and injected Martha, to beat up United Farm Workers?

Martha Mitchell and James McCord: McCord was in the
Mitchell apartment at the Watergate Hotel January 6, 1972.
CREEP paid $207 for “technical inspection.” John Mitchell was
Attorney General at this time, and could have used the FBI, not
private funds or McCord. The fee was for “smoke detectors."
When arrested, McCord had a case marked Smoke Detectors.
John Mitchell said he “only saw McCord once." Martha would
know if there were any listening devices in their apartment that
would be picked up at the DNC offices in the same hotel, with
windows facing over a court.

2. Louis Tackwood

Louis Tackwood should have been the first witness before the
Senate Committee.

In a press conference held on October 25,1971, heasked Con-
gress to investigate a secret espionage squad inside the White
House.2L

One yearafter the Watergate arrests, all of the Tackwood alle-
gations are proven accurate. Listed below are his charges and a
brief reference to massive evidence now available to support his
warnings:

1 Anespionage squad wasformed inside the White House,
a secret operation.

Judge Morcll E. Sharp refused to work with the Domestic In-
telligence plan because it was “too secret.” This was six months
after it was allegedly “rescinded.” No evidence exists to prove
the necessity of the squad except for political sabotage. The
Domestic Intelligence and Internal Security Group was the
squad Tackwood referred to.

2. This secret squad was formed in the fall of 1971.

E. Howard Hunt, G. Gordon Liddy moved into White House
in the fall of 1971. Donald Segretti, other operatives all started
hiring provocateurs in the fall of 1971.

3. The group was connected to the FBI and other intelligence
agencies.

William Sullivan, Division V, FBI, left J. Edgar Hoover to
work with this group. Logswere taken from the FBI. FBI agents
involved with Division V in other election manipulations.

4. Domestic White House police force connected to Califor-
nia, up and down the coast, working with Attorney General
Evelle Younger.

California is the center of major Justice Dept, conspiracy
cases. Black Panthers, Chicanos, political prisoners are victims
of the White House espionage working with Asst. Attorney
General Robert Mardian. The Grand Jury is used to force liti-
gations, conspiracy trials and imprisonment.

5. Murders and violence were planned for the Republican
National Convention in 1972.

Arsenals of weapons were being purchased for Miami. Vio-
lent demonstrations were being planned. Liddy, Hunt, LaRue
were armed, with weapons in White House desk, attache cases.
William Lemmocr, special forces, U.S. agent, told his girlfriend,
"Don’t come to Miami. Stay out, there will be fighting and
shooting.”2

6. Provocateurs would be hired to cause violence.

Hundreds of Republicans were being brought in for demon-
strations. Segretti was meeting Hunt-to hire provocateurs.
While House private phone, billed to Kathleen Chenowin Vir-
ginia, was used by Hunt for calls to Bernard Barker in Miami.
Miss Chenow was immediately spirited to a London “vacation”
after the Watergate arrests. She was secretary to White House
“plumbers” head David Young.
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Anodized Electronic Genital Prods. Developed
from the long familiar Cattle Prods used in Wild
West Rodeos to excite Brahma bulls to a peak
of frenzy before releasing them into the ring,
these handy little instruments are excellent for
controlling excitable prisoners during mass
shower periods in correctional institutions, or
for vice squad entrapment officers engaged in
clean up sweeps of homosexuals in public com-
fort stations and park urinals. Only $35.97
each. (Batteries, $3.00 extra)

7. Radicals were to be rounded up. Internal Security work-
ing to get them.

James McCord was meeting daily with Internal Security.
Watergate squad had access to lists which belonged to other
areas if protection from violence was the motive, rather than ar-
rests.

8. Code names in White House to contact were “Martin”
and “White.”

James McCord registered at the Washington police station as
Edward Martin. E. Howard Hunt was known as “White.”2
* 9. Public Relations offices would cover the martial law and
secret squad front.

Mullen Associates ~ Hunt kept a desk here at the same time
he worked at the White House, going back and forth between
the two. Mullen represented the business interests of ITT and
Howard Hughes. Hunt and Liddv were doing errands for ITT,
kidnapping Dita Beard and interviewing her in Denver. Liddy
was using Hughes airplane to capture valuable information —
allegedly Howard Hughes' game plans for elections — in Las
Vegas publisher Hank Grcenspun's safe.

“Public Relations” the office name for CCS, the Los
Angeles section of the Police Dept, that creates criminal con-
spiracies for White House purposes. FBI Public Relations— L.
Patrick Gray, who was part of the Justice Department’s squad
to put the lid on conspiracies, worked i the PR office awaiting
confirmation as head of the FBI.

10.  Ten million dollars was set aside for the secret martial
law plans.

Asecret S10- or - $20 - m:.
Gordon Liddy burned co:
ed to the CIA for fund
provocateurs and oi.
the April 7th dead!" ..
The Realist
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05100 bills that could be trac-
otage. Ten million was passed to
-larch, 1972, in anticipation of
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But the convention was moved in mid-March, because of the
ITT scandal, from San Diego to Miami. That required approxi-
mately another $ 10-million for hired soldiers, provocateurs and
imported violence to round up the radicals. This would explain
the frantic effort to accumulate $ 10-million in only three weeks.
April 5-6, Sloan testified S5 - 6 - million arrived in cash to the
CREEP offices.

If the names did not have to be revealed before April 7,1972.
why did the money have to be delivered in cash?

How could so much of it be consecutively numbered bills?

12.  After martial law was declared, the plans included gett-
ing Nixon.

The assassination plan of Andrew Topping confirms this.
Testimony of Harold W. Eldridge could confirm this.24 Investi-
gation of the death of Secret Service agent J. Clifford Dietrich
might confirm this.

Secret Service agent Robert H. Taylor was transferred. He
had a rift with H.R. Haldemen, who tried to change security ar-
rangements. Taylor threatened to arrest Haldeman for interfer-
ing with security when he wanted a “spontaneous demonstra-
tion" for the President in New Hampshire. A duplication of the
Wallace shooting, already written ina book, could clear the way
for Agnew.5

13.  The goal was a U.S. gestapo.

Senator Ervin described the espionage squad inside the White
House as a “gestapo mentality." J. Edgar Hoover refused any
part of the gestapo, saying the secret Domestic Intelligence
operations “denied our civil liberties.” The Inter-Agency Group
(1AG) on Domestic Intelligence and Internal Security includes
members from the FBI, CIA, DIA, NSA, Counter-Intelligence
agencies of the Army, Air Force, Navy and Police Depart-
ments.

Editors note: As we go to press, Louis Tackwood has once
again been picked up by Los Angeles police, beaten up, hisarm
broken in prison. Itshould be the duty of the Senate Committee
and the special federal prosecutor to protect the life of this vital
witness. He hasldocumentation and names linking the White
House plumbers to California law enforcement agencies. He
could also be a deciding factor in the San Quentin Six and other
trials.

3. Tom Charles Huston

The “Huston documents™ are a cover. Tom Charles Huston
did not write these. Who did? Huston is a cut-off man, the
middle man, between the operators and the setting up of the
operations; the delivery boy.

There arc instructionsJor President Nixon, supposedly Hus-
ton giving orders:

. “l am attaching my recommendations on the decision the
President should make with regard to these operational re-
straints.”

“It might be helpful to add my specific recommendations and
reasons in the event the President has some doubts on specific
courses of action."”

“1lrecommend the President call in Mr. Hoover for stroking
sessions. The President explains the decisions he made. He
thanks Hoover for his candid advice and past cooperation. He
indicates he is counting on Edgar’s cooperation in implement-
ing the report. He announces his decision. Follow this up witha
meeting in the Oval Office. Thank members for their report.
Announce his decisions. Indicate his desire for future activities.
Presenteach member with an autographed copy of photo of first
meeting where OLLIE took place.”

Huston, whoever he represents, had advice for the military
and intelligence agencies pushing this domestic plan.
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Having seen the President in action with Mr. Hoover, lam
confident he can handle the situation in such a way that we can
get what we want without putting Edgar’s nose out of joint."”

"At the same time [that he is placating Hoover] we can
capitalize on the good will the President has built up with the
other principlesand minimize the risk that they may feel they are
being forced to take a back seat to Mr. Hoover."®

Tom Charles Huston came to the White House from Young
Americans for Freedom.

Douglas Caddy, attorney called to the Washington jail the
night five men were arrested at the Watergate, was founder of
Young Americans for Freedom.

Military intelligence agents arrived from Munich, Germany
to Dallas, Texas to infilter and take over Young Americans for
Freedom.

Those agents were involved in the assassination of President
Kennedy in 1963.

Their goal was to take over the White House by 1970.Z7

Herbert Kalmbach, attorney for President Nixon, had meet-
ings with Douglass Caddy, as did many others from the White
House espionage teams.

Through the cooperation of the Justice Dept., intelligence
agenciesand the armed forces, it appears that 1orn Charles Hus-
ton was performing his duties, as assigned, to order Richard
Nixon, taking his orders from the military and intelligence
agencies. Although he is described as a “White House aide,”
Huston was mentioned in testimony by Richard Kleindienst as
general counsel to the CIA.

4. William Sullivan, Division Y, FBI

William Sullivan worked closely with Robert Mardian, Inter-
nal Security, and the White House espionage squad.

When Sullivan left the FBI, he removed tapes kept with J. Ed-
gar Hoover that could cause political damage to Nixon-Agnew.

Senator Wcicker at leastasked John Dean if he knew William
Sullivan.

The killing of President Kennedy was planned by Division V
of the FBI under the cloak of the Defense Intelligence Security
Command.

Headquarters were in Muscle Shoals, Alabama, home of
NASA. 9

Five fronts were utilized.

The same fronts employed for the complicated set of murders
in Dallas — of President Kennedy, Officer J.D. Tippitand Lee
Harvey Oswald — were familiar to the Watergate Affair. Many
of the agents involved in 1972 election sabotage can be connect-
ed to earlier sabotage. These include:

Solidarists: CIA foundations, centered in Houston, working
with the emigre community, many employed as scientists, oil
operators. They were connected to the Mexican money wash-
ings, Siberian oil contracts and warfare production. Large
donations to Nixon campaign, and Johnson’s earlier, came
from Houston and Dallas.

American Council of Christian Churches: Shortly before LBJ
died, he revealed that curiosity caused him to find the real
assassins of President Kennedy. They were located in the Carib-
bean, called Murder, Inc. A series of Church fronts funded a
school for assassins in Oaxaco, Mexico, dressed as mission-
aries. The same church people, interested in such activities, have
direct contacts to important White House aides, FBI and CIA
agents. Agency money is sent to churches who pass it to persons
that they never met, and will not meet. This money hires
assassins.

Miami syndicate: Frank Sturgis delivered arms for Castro at
one time, changed sides, and left the gambling tables he was
charged with. From that time on, he attempted to "save" Cuba
from Communists. Gambling was an important motive foranti-
Castro hatreds. Bernard Barker, money man in the Miami area,
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worked for Batista’s secret police. The Syndicate, hoping to re-
turn to control Cuba, hires Cuban exiles to promote distur-
bances.

Cuban Exile Group, Free Cuba Committee: The Cuban exile
community worked closely with government agencies and the
Solidarists, coordinated by Division V of the FBI. Oil interests,
geologists and gambling interests utilized exile Cubans for foot
soldiers to help reclaim Cuba for particular purposes. Hatred of
Communism was their common motivation for team work.

The power and profit motives are played down, but finan-
ciers have always forced the White House to make military deci-
sions, and have contributed millions to the campaigns to be
assured that their desires become orders. Kennedy’s refusal to
invade Cuba or kill Castro was one more proof he was not their
man.

Security Division of NASA: Headed by Werner von Braun.
Nazi headquarters were moved to the Caribbean following
World War 1l. The National Security Council, patterned from
German intelligence, provided the espionage framework inside
the White House for our political assassinations as well as the
Watergate “plumbers” and election manipulations.

Agents from Military intelligence and the armed forces were
concealed inside defense projects.

The Syndicate worked With the Defense Industrial Security
Command.

Robert Sheridan, appointed by George McGovern to
"investigate Watergate for the Democrats,” was the direct liai-
son to the departments involved in the Kennedy assassination.
The Watergate parallels arc too great to not suspect a con-
tinuous working of this operation.2*

6 Pound "Cooties." We have over seven hun-
dred of these amazing giant mutant vermin, de-
veloped through our "Infestation" program
which was to be programmed simultaneously
with our "Deforestation” program in Viet Nam.
These unruly creatures are in perfect health,
but are impossible to train and must be kept in
maximum security cages. Since they are hybrids
and sterile, there will be no danger of their
breeding and infesting the co.untryside. Sold
only in pairs; $800.00, including cages and laser
whips. NOTE. May not be publicly exhibited
without clearance from our Agency.
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Cesar Chavez Targets. Life size octagonal tar-
gets bearing a speaking likeness of the notorious
Chicano Trouble Maker, Cesar Chavez. De-
signed for training in use of riot and scatter
guns. Targets available in three size-ranges:
Close up, closer and point blank. Only $13.75

I11. Martial Law without the Riots

"They have the marshals, | have the Army."

—Richard Nixon to John Dean

Ordering martial law, under the guise of National Emer-
gency, is no problem for the White House.

We are actually in a state of martial law at this time, with the
Judiciary and the Executive branches facing a crisis, in which
the President will not account for his actions, defined as pos-
sibly criminal.'

Richard Nixon is no longer receiving advice of Melvin Laird
he does not wish to receive, but willaccept Pentagon ordersand
directions.

William Timmons, part of the White House espionage group,
instead of being purged, is chief White House lobbyist.

Roy Ash, who should have been removed from the White
House for at least ten good reasons, has been described as “ex-
panding his perimeter.” The U.S. will become like Greece, which
Litton Industries and Ash helped create.

General Haig said he didn’t give up his military career “to
shuffle papers.” He intends to shuffle us instead. He refuses to
fire White House aides involved with Watergate “whether they
are guilty or not.”

There is no indication the military and intelligence agency
plans are not in operation, or that Haig and others do not put
ends far above the means.

The White House is controlled by the clandestine mind and
operators who instigated military coup d'etats and military dic-
tatorships elsewhere. They have determined that the majority,
just because they are the majority, are not able to decide what is
best for the conglomerates and financial empires.

Long before the 1972 elections, a series of government
agencies were being formed that would assure control of the
population.

A conflict was going to arise. Billions would be spent on con-
tinuing military hardware. Money would be withheld from pro-
grams for domestic improvements and opportunities. A civil
war situation, identical to that created by ITT and the CIA in
Chile, as well as elsewhere, would be forced.
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We were entering a period of no-knock, surreptitious entry,
mail openings, imprisonment without trials, elimination of
mental hospitals, reduced minority benefits, systematic
assassination of minority leaders, closed borders into Canada
and Mexico, police laser weapons, data banks, and other rea-
sons for population unrest. With that in mind, we are left with
those agencies stiL functioning, becoming stronger every day,
when they should be broken up.

If you can’t accept the martial law plans for 1972, insist that
the Senate and the federal prosecutors examine data existing to
prove this fact, such as the Louis Tackwood charges and other
evidence. Without comprehending the amount of work antici-
pated to keep these plans operating, there is no way to expose
and demand that agencies formed be dismatled.

A. Institutions to dismantle

Only afew ofthe mostdangerous institutions which should be
dismantled include:

Office of Management Budget: Domestic funds and deci-
sions belong in the hands of Congress. Roy Ash was accused of
taking $43-million from Howard Hughes contracts by shuffling
the books, then started Litton Industries empire to expand.
Litton is consumed in large cost overruns, running into billions.
The excuse of the Office of Management Budget was to “save
money.” Ash could save the taxpayer by minding his own ship-
yard.

The close association of Roy Ash, John Maury of the CIA
and other top government officials, to the Greek military dicta-
torship is shocking. The White House “plumbers”and all agents
involved in sabotage and conspiracy worked through and with
the Office of Management Budget at one time. Fred Malek of
that Office should be returned to the Pentagon, away from
domestic affairs.

Office of Emergency Service: We all want warning and pro-
tection from natural disasters, such as earthquakes, floods,
hurricanes. That coverstory and excuse isthe diabolical 1984ish
James McCord secret warning system being pushed today.

This involves a two-way radio into every home.®

Ronald Reagan, hoping to be President, is pushing hard in
California for the Office of Emergency Service.

The Roseville, Calif, tests on military equipment exploding
was to further justify that Office. It was a provocateur-type
operation to create the need for legal repression.

Any natural disaster or happening would come and go. But
the Office of Emergency Service will remain.

Inter-Divisional Information Unit (IDIU): This isa cover for
domestic intelligence gathering.3

While the CIA isnot supposed to be operating inside the U.S.,
it exists everywhere with different covers.

There are military provisions to anticipate all future upris-
ings.

Drug and Law Enforcement (DALE): This is a dangerous
new development which conceals espionage operations and
allows for terror in the community.

Every manifestation of Nazi Germany has been utilized in-
side the U.S. with the exception of entering, breaking homes
apart, killing, and leaving. DALE is that missing link.

There are no promises that raids will cease. There isevery rea-
son to believe they will continue and make more “errors.” Even
when the arrested have drugs on the premises the methods used
and the consequences of the discovery do not justify the way
DALE was formed.

Imported narcotics, on CIA planes and otherwise, serve three
purposes important to the federal government.

First, it is good business, exceeding war profits. The drug
dealers work with the intelligence and military in many ways.
Profits gained from drug traffic help support racist projects, in-
cluding political conspiracies and assassinations.
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Second, provocateurs and police agents purposely push nar-
cotics into the ghettos to control the minorities. According to
Louis Tackwood, the Los Angeles Police Dept, supplied drugs,
as do other police agencies.

Third, the necessary violence and crime in the streets caused
by supporting drug habits requires more police, local helicop-
ters, surveillance, arrests without warrants, framing selected
patsies by planting evidence on the premises, and makesthe law
enforcement agent protector of our life and property.

Planted marijuana in the binoculars ofJohn Lennon isthe ex-
cuse to deport him from the U.S. In spite of the cultural ad-
vancements he and Yoko Ono have made, their outspoken cri-
ticism of warfare, genocide and political prisoners make them
eligible for an “enemy list.” Planted narcotics becomes the ex-
cuse to deny a family the right to find their child.

DALE is a political tool of the administration.3

UCLA Institute to Study the Causes of Violent Behavior:
This Institute is Ronald Reagan’sanswer to “solving violence by
1975.” Senator Ervin and others requested this study be put off
because of Watergate and federal influence into domestic pri-
vacy.

Funded by CIA fronts, concealed grants and government
money, the UCLA Institute hides behind the California Coun-
cil on Criminal Justice.

Suicides, family beatings, minority problems can easily be
solved in direct proportion to the amount of money located in
space and defense budgets being transferred to domestic needs.

There isa concerted interest in federal, CIA studies to justify
brain experimentation, prisoner modification and minority ex-
perimentation on the basis that social unrest is not caused by
economic deprivations. Every effort to pass this propaganda as
fact should be challenged.

Twenty-five per cent of the Gestapo doing painful and sub-
human experiments in Nazi Germany were from the leading uni-
versities. NASA scientist Dr. Ross Adey, working at UCLA,
justified brain altering by claiming that “the brain feels no
pain.”3®

ENSKIDS: The National Security Council and the National
Security Act of 1947 made every provision in their charters for
sabotage and infiltration necessary inside the U.S. as well as in
other countries.3

ENSKIDS is one of the provisions for the CI A to work inside
the U.S. Every person can be “suspected” of having foreign con-
tacts. thus justifying their surveillance. This was the excuse for
following Mary Jo Kopcchne, who later was found dead inside
the car of Senator Ted Kennedy.

Atascadero, Calif., Lister Unit, Vacaville, Calif.: California
prisons have been experimenting with dangerous, painful drugs
for a long time. Empty units wait at the Lister Center in Vaca-
ville, hoping the public will lose interest in prisoners. Public
opposition stalled the process temporarily until the UCLA cen-
ter appeared.

Federal funds, through LEAA, provide methods of social
control. These include various drugs and techniques not allow-
ed by the Nuremberg Code or AMA guidelines.

—Proloxin was used on 1.093 inmates in Vacaville in 1971.

—Anccctin has been used on at least 90 unwilling patients in
California, and probably, many more.

—Electro-convulsive shocks arc administered as punish-
ment.

—Castrations arc common. L.A. Superior Court Judge Law-
rence Turrentinc ordered 60 castrations. L.A. Superior Court
Judge Frank Collier ordered 41 castrations. Genitals are wired,
inside California prisons, as experimentation on prisoners.

—Sterilizations, 19,042 of them, were ordered by California
judges for “preventive procreation.”
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This is a national problem, but | have done research into the
California prisons as related to California conspiracy and es-
pionage operations.3

U.S. Medical Center for Federal Prisoners in Springfield,
Miss., Adirondak Treatment Center, New York State, Beha-
vior Research Center in Butner, North Carolina: Clockwork
Orange is alive and well in the United States.

Anticipated social unrest will be challenged with removal of
prisoners from their home states, and a loss of contact with
those persons.

Advanced behavior modification, imprisonment without
committing a crime, and transporting prisoners across state
lines arc escalations of Auschwitz, USA.

New Proposed Cabinet in California to combine the Mili-
tary, Prisons, Law Enforcement into One Group: Ronald Rea-
gan has compared President Thicu in Vietnam to George Wash-
ington. Following all the methods used by Thieu and the
Phoenix program in Asia to silence over 40,000 political pri-
soners in preparation for an election. Presidential aspirant Rea-
gan is clearing the way at home.

The UCLA Institute to Study the Causes of Violent Beha-
vior, the Office of Emergency Service, the new proposal to es-
tablish a single manpower agency for employment and the new
proposed cabinet arc all Ronald Reagan’s pet projects which he
is pushing to implement asjoon as possible.

If there was ever a time to question and fear one public ser-
vant, it is now and the man is Reagan. Almost each month adia-
bolic suggestion has appeared as a real nightmarish possibility.

A “special task force” has assembled to combine controls
over the citizens under the guise of a “study.” A new California
cabinet is proposed. This would include the Military. Highway
Patrol, Office of Emergency Service, California Criminal Jus-
tice (Federal funds), Crime Technological Research Founda-
tion, Dept, of Corrections, and the Youth Authority.®

B. The Enemy List

The White House intelligence operation, acting apart from
their separate agencies, was coordinated to handle domestic
emergencies.

These domestic dangers turned out to be political enemies of
the administration or the corporate structure as it w- nts to exist.

Procedures of operation, surreptitious entry, wiretapping,
opening mail, etc., were listed and approved, although clearly
illegal.

Tax money was paid to spy against ourselves.

Where did this countcr-intclligcnce army learn who to at-
tack? From the White House enemy list, of course.

What military objective was their target? You don’t set up
unconventional warfare operating procedures without having
goals in mind.

Radicals, anti-war protestors, minority leaders and prisoners
were already under attack by existing military and federal
agencies.

They were infiltrated, saturated with provocateurs, bugged,
busted, imprisoned. Others were murdered, poisoned and
crippled.(Details of Murdcrvillc, U.S. A. will appear in my next
article for The Realist. “Why was J. Edgar Hoover Murdered?”)

The President himself admitted having approved an illegal
operation of repression against campus and other radical
groups.

All that remained was to get the list, and get the army mov-
ing.
“By 1970 it was public knowledge the FBI alone had added
1,200 agents for campus work, that federal funds for local po-
lice surveillance were increased by 300%, and that the Justice
Dept, was turning its Internal Security Division into a national
squad devoted to massive surveillance and harassment.”3*
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Radioactive Cobalt Vaginal Suppositories.
Come packed in special V*"' lead-lined contain-
ers, six to a package. Asconditions requiring the
application of these jazzy little items have
changed due to recent political developments,
we can now release them to the public (at their
own risk). Our loss is your gain: only 75tf per
half dozen. (Postage and handling, including
Radiation-Proof Case: $200.00)

The White House "plumbers” and the coordinated agencies
that worked with them were formed to damage, secretly, the
political enemies. Standard government departments, made up
of Republicans and Democrats, would have learned of these
operations.

H.R. HaldeYnan gave the approval for S400,000 to “defeat”
George Wallace. Supposedly it went to a Democratic candidate
for Governor, but Haldcman didn’t know his name. Couldn’t it
also go to part of an assassination team? He only allocated the
cash from a special, secret White House safe but didn’t inquire
the use when it was handed over? Hardly possible! Only an
intelligence operation, working on a necd-to-know basis, be-
haves in such a manner.

There were waysto attack the political enemies. In some man-
ner, from various choices, they would be “screwed" after the
elections.

Investigating tax returns, withholding of federal grants and
contracts, litigations and prosecutions were suggested. That is
where the army comes in. They have to create those con-
spiracies that will “frame,” “screw,” “program” and ‘“create
scandals.”

Create scandals:

Michael Dellums, son of black Representative Ron Dcllums,
was arrested recently. Were any of his companions provoca-
teurs? Were they persuaded into actions, for money or other-
wise, to cause this arrest? That is not far-fetched, after Studying
lists of those in prisons today because of such planted conspira-
cies.

The Trojan boys — USC fraternity gang that ended up in the
White House, were stuffing ballot boxes, creating disturbances
and testing their political muscles as young adults.

Sally Harmony testified about Robin Cranston early in the
Watergate hearings. His name was on the Gemstone papers. Ro-
bin, the son ofanti-war Senator Alan Cranston, recently had le-
gal troubles with a female who claimed he put LSD in her drink.
Was she one of Liddy’s choice women who would be utilized la-
ter in Miami?
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Programming:

Mr. and Mrs. A. Picker were to be “programmed.”

The Pickers were large contributors to the political campaign
of Senator Muskie.

What constitutes programming?

Mrs. Dorothy Hunt, at the lime of her death on the sabotag-
ed flight to Chicago on December 8, 1972, had the name of two
neurosurgeons with her. An accomplished CIA agent on her
own, would these persons perform for the accused a service that
would save paying blackmail money the rest of their lives?

The present Attorney General Eliot Richardson seems to be
knowlcdgablc about mind control, behavior modification and
programming.

Following the Detroit riots of 1967, a new method of handl-
ing minorities started to be explored seriously as an alternative
to social progress. Frank Ervin, Vernon Mark and William
Sweet, all from Massachusetts, received aid from Eliot Richard-
son to begin studies and experimentation on behavior modi-
fication of minorities. It was Richardson who managed to get
their project financed through Congressional funds. Their pro-
ject is the use of preventive psychosurgcry on minority children
in Massachusetts.I7

C.  The Warfare State
President Richard Nixon:

The image of J. Walter Thompson, cold war advertising
agency, has been replaced without a cover story.1#

The Pentagon has taken over the Oval Office. It was always
there, but concealed in a more subtle way.

Cold war provisions for the National Security Council, hous-
ed inside the White House, to direct the designated official, are
followed through.

Domestic spy operations, illegal procedures, denial of Consti-
tutional protections, were also ordered.

Armed guards seal all files and documents.

Tape recordings of Presidential conversations can be used to
blackmail the President if he forgets his lines or does not per-
form appropriately to orders.

Intelligence agents hire the staff.

Vice-President Spiro Agnew:

Plans to assassinate Richard Nixon indicate a desperation of
the extreme right wing to place Agnew in the White House as
soon as possible.

Watergate defendants and close working associates of the es-
pionage teams were Agnew-Ashbrook supporters. YAF, Tom
Charles Huston’s organization, supported Agnew in 1972.

There was a determination to “get Nixon" by the conserva-
tives rather than by Democrats or radicals.

Agnew’s money and close links to the Greek military junta
have not been mentioned with regard to 1972 election financ-
ing. Tapes exist to prove millions of dollars, through Tom Pap-
pas, Esso Oil, placed Agnew on the Republican ticket.

Maj. Gen. John Dunn, Agncw's deputy chief of staff, indi-
cates a growing fear of a militarized White House. Dunn, a
colonel 3 years ago, became a two-star general this March. The
Greek military junta came into existence during a 24-hourcoup
d'etat because the generals and older conservatives had been sys-
tematically replaced prior to the takeover.19
Chief Justice Warren Berger:

A new Constitution was written for use after the 1972 elec-
tions.

It is a blueprint for a Nazi state.

Warren Berger insisted the new Constitution eliminate trial
byjury.

yI{%ergerclaimed “the trial byjury slows the wheels ofjustice." 20

The Supreme Court recently turned down, by a vote of 7-0,
the request to examine documentary evidence that Sirhan Sir-
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han did not kill Senator Robert Kennedy. The circumstances
that allowed Nixon to become President were so unusual and
horrendous. If the matters of political assassination are still si-
lenced, after years of research and proof of a conspiracy exist-
ed, there is no chance that illegal wiretapping or bugging will
cause the President to move very far away from the source of his
power.

General Alexander Haig, White House Chief of Staff:

General Haig, like GeneralDunn,passcd over 243 generals for
his appointment. Rockefeller, residing in New York, directs his
men — Henry Kissinger, John Mitchell, Spiro Agnew. Haig is
the protege of Kissinger and maintains control of the White
House as the other men move out and shift positions caused by
Watergate scandals.4l

Haig is a defendant in a suit by Morton Halperin for illegal
wiretaps on his home and office. There is no chance, with the
Pentagon ruling the courts, that Kissinger or Haigwill even geta
reprimand for such actions. “National security” protects es-
pionage agents against us. Iftheir liesare revealed, as in the Pen-
tagon Papers, the punishment is pushed upon those who see and
tell. There ismore national security in smoking these people out.
out.

Maj. Gen. John C. Bennett, White House Staff, Maj. George
Joulwan:

Bennett and Joulwan are aides, still on active duty at the pre-
senttime. They are assisting General Haig in the White House.2
William J. Baroody, Pentagon, Fred Buzhardt, Counsel for the
President:

Buzhardt’s name came up at the time of the Pentagon Papers
trial. Evidence was withheld to the detriment of the defendants.
March, 1971, Buzhardt testified that electronic surveillance of
the army on citizens did not directly interfere with civil rights.43
Clarence Kelley, new Director of the FBI:

Famous for computerized police departments. Blacks, anti-
war protestors, radicals harassed in Kansas. Police killings of
blacks, uuse of helicopters, data banks. LEAA funds, repres-
sions financed following violence instigated by federal pro-
vocateurs. Heavily linked to Federal police systems. Passed
Senate approval 96-0, indicating total ignorance ofwhat Water-
gate espionage was really about. This appointment could have
been held up, like L. Patrick Gray’s, until more information was
available.

William Colby, new Director of the CIA:

The CIA has been involved in domestic sabotage. Colby, as
head of the dreaded Phoenix program in Vietnam, became
synomyous with population displacement, tortures, imprison-
ment of political voices against Thicu, and dropping Viet Cong

from airplanes. The arrogance of this nomination at this time by
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Richard Nixon will be equalled by the Senate with no respect lor
human lives or liberty.
James Schlesinger, Secretary of Defense:

“Knowledge is a form of power and most institutions exhibit
an understandable reluctance to dissipate this power in the ab-
sence of compensating advantages.”

“The deliberate introduction of distortion and fuzziness to
improve the competitive position of one’s own agency or divi-
sion is an unavoidable and dominant feature of the bureaucra-
tic landscape.”

“Politics, so far as mobilizing support is concerned, repre-
sents the art of calculated cheating, or more precisely how to
cheat without being really caught.”

—Systems Analysis and the Political Process
James Schlesinger, Rand Corp., June 1967

D. Political Prisoners of America

Provisions for martial law and the institutions to implementa
military dictatorship inside the U.S. affect all facets of our so-
ciety. No persons suffer more than political prisoners, victims of
the police state.

The prison system reflects the quality and justice of itssociety
outside. Tiger cages in Vietnam, islands of torture in Greece,
assassination police squads and torture in Brazil, extermina-
tion camps in Germany, have been powerful and necessary me-
thods of silencing political opponents. Knowing such prisons
exist keeps the moderate and frightened from voicing their
objections to oppression.

The same Justice Dept., FBI, counter-intelligence agencies
working inside the White House that condoned election sabo-
tage and “horror stories" come down upon radicals inside the
prisons as well as on the streets.

Raymond Procunier, director of State Department of Cor-
rections in California, said, “If we've got a group out preaching
revolution, and wethink that it’sdangerous, we lock them up.”4
Many U.S. prisoners have been murdered, framed and con-
fined in isolation solely for their political beliefs and not for ac-
tual crimes committed. When the California authorities can’t
find a crime, provocateurs create conspiracies and assure their
selected targets are blamed.

Throughout the 1960’ and ’70s the consciousness of pri-
soners about the political nature of their situations has grown
along with the political movements on the outside.

The more they call attention to their conditions, the more
inhumane is their treatment.

Prison demonstrations or actions to voice existing condi-
tions cause some men to be segregated for life.

If the White House defined moderates such as Hubert
Humphrey or Edmund Muskie as “enemies” to be defeated by
any means necessary, what chance do radical prisoners have for

ja new definition or chance to live?

The Adjustment Center, Maximum Security, is for political

Germans claimed to be ignorant of Dachau and Aushwitz.

There arc enough books and data available about U.S. pri-
sons to set innocent men free and to force a change of condi-
tions.%6

The Watergate espionage squad is directly linked to Califor-
nia agencies and prisons.

Elmer Davis, a man currently held in the Calif. State Prison at
Folsom, was charged with the Ellsberg. robbery of Dr. Lewis
Fielding’s office. Davis was in prison at the time he was charged
and could not have been in Beverly Hills at the time. A suit has
been filed by Davis in the U.S. District Court against Richard
Nixon, John Ehrlichman, Egil Krogh, G. Gordon Liddy, E.
Howard Hunt and California law enforcement officials, includ-
ing Beverly Hills Law Enforcement officers.46
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Plastic Good Conduct Medals. These economi-
cal little medals follow closely the design of the
American originals, with a special inscription
designed to support the morale and fighting
spirit of our ARVIN brothers of the South Viet
Nam National Army in their fight to stem the
tide of World Communism. The unfortunate in-
clusion of the word "Gook" in the inscription
has necessitated our withdrawing this decora-
tion from general distribution. Our loss is your
limited gain: only $2.75 a gross. (Big discounts
on large ordersl)

The Elmer Davis case is only one from a long list of arrests
that will indicate the interrelationship of the CIA. Los Angeles
Law Enforcement, California Dept, of Corrections and other
officers.

Cuban terrorists carried out armed arson attacks in Los
Angeles, 1970, against the Haymarkct, a radical meeting place
and bookstore; the offices of the Socialist Workers Party; and
Ashgrove, a coffee house that made it facilities available to radi-
cal causes.

Mario Pclacz, Reynaldo Castro and Reynaldo Gonzalez, all
arrested, were working for the CIA. Edward Gritz and Ser-
geant Charles Loust of the LAPD Criminal Conspiracy Divi-
sion confirmed the CIA connections. The Cubans had been hir-
ed in May 1970 to “fight Communism and get Cuba back." The
men worked with Alpha 66, the armed guerrilla warfare group
that Frank Sturgis, Bernard Barker, Eugenio Martinez and
other Watergate operatives were associated with.

Louis Tackwood, working with the Los Angeles Police Dept.,
revealed another CIA, LAPD, FBI conspiracy plot which took
place at San Quentin. This was the George Jackson murder and
framing of radical prisoners for other deaths that occurred that
day.

The White House espionage group was responsible for killing
28 Black Panthers and other minority leaders. They also were
determined to exterminate leaders inside the prison.

Eldrigc Cleaver, writer and Panther, escaped going to prison
and went to Algeria. Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms agents
were making a deal with Sonny Barger, Hell’s Angels leader, to
“bring Cleaver home dead ina box." Larry Shears, theagent who
exposed this arrangement, also revealed the plans of ATF to kill
Cesar Chavez.*7 This was at a time when John Caulfield and
G. Gordon Liddy were working for the Treasury Dept. ATF.

Tackwood stated in his 1971 press conference that the LAPD
Criminal Conspiracy Section, with links to the CIA and FBI,
had foreknowledge of the Judge Haley murder, Marin Court-
house shootout and the San Quentin killing of George Jackson.
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In line with murdering political leaders, writers and Black
Panthers. George Jackson had been marked for death several
years in advance of the shootout. Many prisoners had been
offered parole if they would kill or frame him. Refusal to com-
ply brought more charges of assaults and punishments.

Ronald Reagan, Governor of California, had information
four months inadvance on his desk which could have prevented
the San Quentin killings. But, like other staged riots and vio-
lence, this was meant to take place. The suppressed report, re-
garding possible disturbance and unrest inside the prison, was
referred to in the October 23, 1971 edition of the San Francisco
Chronicle.

As an agent provocateur for the LAPD, Tackwood was sent
to prison disguised as an inmate to create disturbances or to
frame a particular prisoner. As part of his LAPD employment,
he testified at the trial of Joseph Lee Jenkins, which sent an
innocent man to San Quentin for life.

Jenkins, innocent, is imprisoned for political purposes. Ser-
geant Woods. Homicide Division, LAPD, stated he would
charge Clemmie E. Henderson unless he cooperated and testi-
fied against Joseph Joseph l«ee Jenkins.

The threat was made in Antelope Valley Police Dept., Lan-
caster, California.

Henderson was given a set of facts to testify to. He was taken
to the scene of the crime, shown photographs of the area, and
other people.

Two other witnesses. Larry and Arnold Kendrick, were coerc-
ed.

Henderson did not sec Jenkins kill Darlene Smelcer. He was
instructed starting August 13, 1969 to give false testimony.

Arnold Kendrick and Clemmie Henderson killed Miss §mcl-
ccr, and Jenkins was not involved in the creime.

Jenkins was the only person among a group who had an ar-
rest record, so the police found him the “easiest person to con-
vince of the crime.”

(The above information is from a deposition of Clemmie E.
Henderson, Stale of Calif., County of Marin, recorded at San
Quentin State Prison on Sunday, October 15, 1972, at the re-
quest of Clemmie E. Henderson. B-34006 and Joseph Lee Jen-
kins. B-33668. Is there an attorney who will come forward and
represent Joseph Lee Jenkins? He is innocent, and has already
served four years of his life in San Quentin for a crime he never
commited.)

Another provocateur, Lee Smith, testified before a House
Committee that he was “recruited to foment prison unrest” at
the California Men's Colony in 1971. He was to help plan and
carry out a strike, and also worked with other prisoners to as-
sault two California prison guards.

Agent proveateurs are hired to blame “Marxist revolu-
tionary forces” for prison unrest. The conditions of prison then
became more secretive and more controlled.8

Stephen Bingham was the agent provocateur of the San
Quentin shootout. Boyd Douglas was hired to frame the Bcrri-
gans. Whittaker Chambers was utilized to imprison Alger Hiss.

Bingham was employed for the murder of George Jackson
and the subsequent imprisonment of six radicals: Flceta Drum-
go, Willie Tate, Hugo Pinell, Johnny Larry Spain and Louis
Talamantcx. Known as the San Quentin Six. they will be on trial
soon, two years after their arrests.

A common Nazi method of exterminating was utilized —
“killed while escaping.” George Jackson was shot in the head.
There are discrepancies regarding the autopsy and location of
the wounds.

Bingham was nota “Communist.” Tackwood told me he was
sent from British Intelligence, went to San Quentin, provided
the excuse for the George Jackson killing. He provided a gun
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which was supposedly in Jackson’s “wig."

Charges against the San Quentin Six are for the murder of
two other prisoners and three guards.

Asst. Attorney General Robert Mardian, associated with the
Watergate arrests and the illegal secret White House intelli-
gence squad, created the Grand Jury system to suit Administra-
tion purposes — to commit radicals, anti-war protestors and
political prisoners.

The Grand Jury that indicted the San Quentin Six two years
ago broke apart as a result of their stormy sessions. One grand
juror, in an unprecendcnted move, resigned in protest over the
indictments. He spoke of the “inequalities and injustices of the
secret indicting process." Two other grand jurors walked out on
the meeting, declaring, “What this Grand Jury docs is not jus-
tice but vengenacce."4

Members of the Grand Jury, attorneys, outside authorities
were not allowed inside San Quentin for a length of time, den-
ied access to investigate the incident.

No impartial investigation was conducted after Jackson and
five others were slain.

The espionage cover story for the murders was that “throats
were cut."

Nelson Rockefeller, Governor of New York, allowed the mur-
der of 43 persons inside Attica prison, that could also have been
avoided. The immediate cover story after riots started was that
“guards' throats were cut.” Scare stories frighten the outside
population against prisoners, and assures that political pri-
soners will remain locked up. But throats were not cut in New
York.

Who sent out that phony story? Why?

If it was concluded that throats were not cut in New York, af-
ter the prison was examined carefully, what assurance is there
that throats were cut in California? Nobody was allowed to en-
ter and examine the evidence.

Judge Haley's body was exhumed to determine information
regarding the Ruchcll Magee trial in Marin County that involv-
ed the LAPD, CCS, Evellc Younger and the Dept, of Correc-
tions.

Before the trial for the San Quentin Six begins, their attor-
neys should demand the bodies be exhumed to sec if that cover
story holds.

Taped conversations of Stephen Bingham, taken following
the killings, in Canada, also exist. They should be produced by
the LAPD.

Immediately after the San Quentin killing of George Jack-
son, the guards and inmates, 22 men in prison sent out a letter
pleading for someone to solve the conspiracy that caused those
bloody events.

Ten years research into the murders of President John
Kennedy, Senator Robert Kennedy, Malcolm X, Martin Luther
King, and then the Watergate Affair, led me to the San Quentin
killings.

Six men are anxious to prove their innocence.

They are being denied lawyers of their choice.

The trial will be a railroad if we allow this to happen.

America must wake up and save the living as well as investi-
gate and mourn the dead.

The Watergate Affair is not only about election sabotage.

Watergate is about a White House President, Department ol
Justice, FBI, CIA. intelligence agencies that conduct para-mili-
tary operations against all citizens alike. Indifference to con-
spiracy trials, created by agencies for silencing minorities,
assures that the real criminals will remain in power.

The team that sabotages the Constitution and the Bill of
Rights, has locked innocent human beings into isolated traps
23/$ hours each day for the past two years.

Two days before George Jackson’s trial, as one-third of the fa-
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mous Solcdad Brothers, Jackson was killed. His two com-
panions were acquitted. Prison violence, imported provoca-
teurs, arc escalating scenes in San Quentin now in anticipation
of this long and crucial trial.

The defendants live with threats of death every day. Phony-
messages of "escape plans to Algeria and Cuba” arc circulating.
It is treacherous business to look forlifeand justice inthe U.S. if
you are marked by the federal government to cease existing.

California law enforcement agencies and planned conspira-
tors should be on trial.

Free the San Quentin Six and investigate Watergate West.

Epilogue:

A "caper” is a “horror story."

John Mitchell, former Attorney General, attempted to se-
parate the Watergate Hotel entry and arrests from the White
House plumbers “horror stories.”

The Watergate Affair can’t be taken apart as a scries of iso-

Splendid Life Size Formal Oil Portraits. These
were painted by leading U.S. Portrait Artists,
and are framed in beautifully carved and gilded
frames with built-in museum type color-correct-
ed lighting devices. These portraits were origi-
nally intended to be displayed in the entrance
halls of U.S. Embassies and Legations through-
out the world. Due to a largely negative local
reaction to these paintings, an appreciable num-
ber had to be returned to the U.S. in order to
avoid Diplomatic Incidents. These handsome
paintings are offered "as is." A perfect answer
to the problem of suitable decor for Board
Room or Corporate Conference Room. Simply
hire your local portraitist to paint out Mr. Nix-
on's face and substitute that of your own Chair-
man of the Board. A “"steal” at only $125.00!

The Realist

http://www.ep.tc/realist
THE REALIST ARCHIVE PROJECT


http://www.ep.tc/reallst/95
http://www.ep.tc/realist

The REALIST Issue Number 95 - Dec, 1972 - Page 29
scans of this entire issue found at: http://www.ep.tc/realist/95

lated acts. agencies, assures their continued success.

The entry into the Democratic Headquarters, forging docu-
ments, complicated money transactions, kidnapping, black-
mailing, hiring provocateurs, planting phony polls, were part of
an espionage establishment that has existed for a long time.

They finally got caught.

Research into political violence and political assassinations
would have clipped their wings much earlier.

Refusal to expose their methods at this time or allowing spe-
cific agents to still control with power over government

Footnotes
/. Liberal press intent on silencing
conspiracies:  Realist. Oct, 1972, Jerry

Policoff, “How All the News About Political
Conspiracies in the United States Has Not
Been Fit to Print in The New York Times."

2. Provocateurs:“An agent provocateur isa
police agent who is introduced into any politi-
cal organization with instructions to foment
discontent. .. orto fake a case inorderto give
his employers the right to act against the or-
ganization in question." —Louis Tackwood,
The Glass House Tapes

Example: The White House was assembl-
inga political attack team for 1972. They need-
ed a cover, so called them “plumbers" to find
leaks on SALT talks from the National Se-
curity Council. All their jobs were political
assignments, including the Ellsberg robbery,
kidnapping Dita Beard, forging State Dept,
papers to blame JFK for the murder of Diem,
collecting data to smear Ted Kennedy follow-
ing the Chappaquiddick death of Mary Jo
Kopcchne, securing cover stories for Arthur
Bremer, arrested for shooting George Wallace.
William Bechcr, from the National Security
Council, planted the leaks. Beecher was then
promoted to deputy Asst. Secretary for Pub-
lic Affairs in the Defense Dept. Acting as a
provocateur, he created the excuse for opera-
tions that would later come down upon inno-
cent citizens.

3. Reichstag Fires in the U.S.: The Reich-
stag was the German government building
burned by Hitler’s general as an excuse to im-
prison radicals and protestors. Domestic vio-
lence caused by Justice Dept, conspiracies:
Murder of Martin Luther King. Systematic
killing of 28 Black Panthers. Kent State, mur-
der of 4 students. Jackson State, murder of 2
students. Urban guerrilla warfare; police and
FBI ammunition: bombs supplied. Attica, 34
prisoners Killed in riots, could've been avoid-
ed. San Quentin, murder of George Jackson, |
guards. 3 prisoners. Chicago 1968 conven-
tion; police, armed forces causing violence.
Planned Killings of 1972, violence for Repub-
lican convention, butarrestsat Watergate can-
celled the plans.

4. Acts oj treason: Webster's New Colle-
giate Dictionary defines treason as (1) The be-
trayal of a trust, and (2) The offense of at-
tempting by overt acts to overthrow the
government of the state to which the offender
owes allegiance or to kill or personally injure
the sovereign or his family. Existing evidence
can prove that acts of violence and even the-
planned killing ofthe President were conspired
for .the fall of 1972. The Watergate Affair is
about treason, not wiretpping and burglary.
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ed purges.

charge.

of the conspiracies.

J. Lawyers involved in the Watergate:
Attorney General John Mitchell; Attorney
General Richard Kleindcinst; Asst. Attorney
General Henry Peterson; Acting Director of
the FBI L. Patrick Gray; Asst. Attorney Gen-
eral Robert Mardian; William Sullivan, Direc-
tor of Division V, FBI; California Attorney
General Evcllc Younger; William Bittman;
Charles Colson; John Dean; Paul O’Brien;
Gordon Strachan; Egil Krogh; Donald Sc-
gretti; Fred LaRue; John Ehrlichman; Herb
Kalmbach; Kenneth Parkinson; Tom Huston;
Richard Moore; G. Gordon Liddy; Herbert
Porter; Judge C. Richey; Richard Nixon.

Lawyers not involved: Judge J. Sirica;
Judge Morcll E. Sharp, who had the good
judgment to refuse involvement with the
domestic intelligence squad.

6. Methods by which covertacts are carried
out — aJew examples: Secret Fundings so
sources arc kept concealed. Provocateurs to
conceal motives behind the operations. “Pub-
lic Relations” office to hide department
planning conspiracies. Dummy fronts, non-
existing business or firms. Cover stories, inac-
curate descriptions of agents or operations.
Cut-offs, hiring a middle man so that connect-
ing agents not seen together, or can’t be recog-
nized as part of a conspiracy.

Necd-to-know, hiring people but not di-
vulging the larger plans; they “didn’t know"
what the money was used for, or about the
operation. Evidence is manipulated, destroy-
ed, forged, “missing," locked up, delayed
(reconstructed to fit into the cover story), alter-
ed, planted against the innocent, withheld in
National Archives. Disguises — wigs, speech
impediments. False 1.D. — passports, social
security, birth ccritificates, union cards,
aliases. Code names, to lose identification,
conceal projects. Job placements, salaries
given but not working at that premise, promo-
tions for services, transfers.

Arson, bombing, to conceal evidence, lose
motivesand confuse. (I learned ofaClAagent,
working with McCord and others from CIA,
who burned two churches in Washington. The
blame was placed on hippies and radicals.
“anti-Christ" youth). Transportation pro-
vided, private planes, getaway planes, double
license plates to switch states, double car
ownerships and keys that fit several cars. llle-
gal wiretaps, electronic surveillance, robbery,
forging. Secret meeting places. Safe Houses,
places to stay, change clothes, meet in open
not-so-bugged parks, under bridges, hotel
lobbies, airports, inside taxicabs. Oral instruc-
tions, no written memos, evidence removed,
final plans made with a nod or sign ofthe hand.

7. Removal of civil liberties: J. Edgar
Hoover objected to the Domestic Intelligence

Election reforms arc a start but a simplistic approach to need-

“McCarthyism” was firing and frightening innocent citizens
by calling them “Communists.” Guilt by association was the

The Watergate purge isdifferent, involving actual criminals.
Murders, conspiracies, sabotage and treason should be the
charges this time, or would be ifthe investigators were not part

plans, saying that “our civil liberties would be
denied." The plan was never rescinded:

(1) July 13, 1970, President Nixon approv-
ed the plan. Electronic surveillance, “surrepti-
tious entry,” breaking and entering, opening
mail, and operations still not revealed.

(2) July 28. 1970, the intelligence plan was
“rescinded" after strong objections of FBI
Director J. Edgar Hoover.

(3) Dec. 1970 and late Jan. 1971, Judge
*Morcll E. Sharp worked inside the White
House, going over the plans, because he was
invited to head this “rescinded" squad. He re-
fused because of the secrecy. Six months after
it was rescinded, interviews were being held to
keep it going into the future.

(4) July 15, 1970. Tom Charles Huston,
“author" of the intelligence plan, said that "No
one at the White House gave formal orders to
rescind the plan."

(5) June 10, 1973, Washington Post reveal-
ed at least 22 covert operations conducted by
this domestic intelligence squad.

8. Ways to cover clandestine operations ij

detected or arrested: Jcb Magrudcr told John
Mitchell he was going to tell the truth in court
instead of perjury the second time around.
According to Magrudcr. Mitchell told him
that was fine, but that he was “going to have to
take the other route.” Keeping secrets isas im-
portant to spy operations as ammunition is to
a weapon. They arc not given away. Methods
of concealment arc:

Denial — Deny all charges. When the
denials arc proven to be lies, they become
“inoperative."

Can't recall — Agents arc working as a
team. Some may or may not talk. Answer toa
question with a “yes" or “no" might be contra-
dicted later. “I can’t recall" covers the terri-
tory™- Recall can return at any moment.

Suicides — Agents arc provided with literal
suicide medications. Psychological suicide is
to die, as a person, to lose traces with the other
agents. You are dead — from them and future
contacts.

Disavowal — Gordon Strachan delivered
money to Fred LaRue. LaRue. wearing gloves
to receive it, reminded Strachan he didn’t
know him.

Perjury — Perjury isn’t perjury; it is ra-
tionalized as patriotism. Lies are not consid-
ered lies; they arc necessities to save America.

“Essentially gossip, nothing evidenciary" —
Richard Moore, Nixon’s attorney, never told
him about information in the Washington
Post or from other sources regardingCREEP.
or possible involvement of White House staff
in the Watergate Affair. His excuse was that it
was “essentially gossip, nothing evidenciary."
The gossip could be checked out with the Jus-
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ticc Dept, or intelligence agencies. So long as
he didn't bother, it remained "gossip."

Nothing illegal — When Tony Ulasewicz
was asked-by Senator Wcickcrifany of hisjobs
for the White House were "illegal," he ans-
wered “no." Howard Hunt wasasked the same
question by the Grand Jury in Washington on
May 2. 1973. When asked if he was “aware or
did participate in what might commonly be re-
ferred to as illegal activities." Hunt answered.
“1 have no recollection of any. sir."

Question: "What about clandestine acti-
vities?*

Hunt: “Yes. sir."

Question: “What about that?’

Hunt: "l am not quibbling, but there’s a dij-
)creme between something that's illegal and
something that$ clandestine. An entry into
something like Dr. Fielding’s office would sim-
ply be called an entry operation conductedun-
der the auspices oj competent authority."

9. Allende allegations. Dec. 1972, United
Nations: William Broc, chief of CIA clandes-
tine services in the Western Hemisphere,
Proposed to ITT officials a plan to accelerate
economic chaos in Chile.

Broc has now become the CIA Inspector
General and recently combed its records Jot
Watergate related documents. Broe has super-
vised a sweep of CIA records to determine
whether they contain anyjurther evidence sug-
gesting CIA links with the Watergate scandal.

U.S. minorities and the unrepresented ma-
jority will have to take the same complaints to
the UN some day. Our economic chaos at the
present time is idcntial to CIA “planned eco-
nomic chaos." (AP. San Jose Mercury, 6-22-
73)

Prime Minister Michael Manley of Ja-
maica demanded that U.S. Ambassador Vin-
cent de Roulet be recalled. He had suggested to
Congress they work out a pre-election deal in
1972. Manley was promised the U.S. would
not interfere in the Flections ifhe agreed not to
make nationalization of the American owned
bauxite industry a campaign issue. (AP, 7-23-
73)

10. Domestic programs to be cut: Fred
Malek, Office of Management Budget, called
"Hatchet man." cuts off jobs on a moment’s
notice. Caspar Weinberger, Health, Educa-
tion & Welfare, known as the "Ax” or “Cap the
knife," reduces domestic needs.

11. Some reasonsJor secret donations: Co-
porate politicaldonationsarc illegal. Favorsin
litigations before the Justice Dept. Delay in
smog, pollution controls that arc costly to fac-
tories. Keep minimum wages down. Raise the
price of milk. Wheat contracts with the Soviet
Union. $6.000,000,000 gas deal with Soviet
Union. Navy bases on Greek Islands, oil trans-
ports and bases.

12. Henry Buchanan account: Patrick
Buchanan. White House aide, was a close per-
sonal friend of Spencer Oliver. Oliver’ phone
was tapped into the Howard Johnson Motel.
Could this telephone be used for the Miami
provocateurs? Henry Buchanan, who kept the
very special secret account in Bethesda, gave
some of this money to Ken Reitz. Reitz wasa
college director in charge of “hiring provoca-
teurs" for demonstrations. (Washington Post,
6-?°-73)

13. Donald Nixon, "loanjrom Marriott"aj-
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ter Watergate arrests: Herb Kalmbach needed
money to keep Howard Huntand others quiet.
The CIA couldn't get involved at this late date
when they were trying to work their way out.
There were enough of their consecutive S100
bills used already. Kalmbach went to New
York for money. There was a suggestion to ask
"Mr. Mitchell or Maurice Stans.” Mitchell was

.staying at the Marriott apartment. Stans had a

very close relationship with Tom Pappas, the
Greek military junta, and Marriott. Stans
praised the Greek dictatorship and conveyed
Nixon’ “warm love" to it. (Evans & Novak, 9-
21-71; Washington Post 5-11-73)

14. “Why Was Martha Mitchell Kid-
napped?" by Mae Brusscll, The Realist, Au-
gust 1972

15. Donald Nixon. Vesco, $200,000 cash,
Washington Post. June 6, 1973

16. Federal Reserve can’t find serial num-
ber: Washington Post, AP, 4-26-73

17. Eight persons killed with regardtojund-
ing:
(1) Mrs. Dorothy Hunt — Carrying$40,000
cash, not $10,000, from Bernard Barker’s ac-
count. Also with $2,000,000 in securities,
bonds, money orders. Killed on Flight 553,
United Airlines, Dec. 8, 1972. Mrs. Hunt had
said her “husband knows enough to impeach
Nixon."

(2) Rep. W. Mills

(3) Col. J. Webster — Campaign manager
for Mills

(4) James Glover — Second in command of
W. Mills

$25,000 in mysterious funds went through
Mills” account. He claimed he didn't know
where it was from. Two men who would know
are dead. Maryland money is important be-
cause of the Wallace shooting in Maryland.
There are a lot of people who would be paid off
or silenced to cooperate with the plans.

(5) Mr. Taub — Allegedly workingfor Herb
Kalmbach. Died in Switzerland. He was sup-
posed to have $2,000,000 on him. the same
amount Dorothy Hunt had when she was
killed.

(6) Dennis Salvatore Cossini — Contact
man from CIA with Arthur Bremer. Could
have provided the money, like Mrs. Hunt, be
the cut-off.

(7) Mrs. A. Topping — Wife of Andrew To-
ing, man hired to kill Nixon. $1,000 was paid
to a Secret Service agent. This could be trac-
ed. Did any of the money come from Water-
gate money? Mrs. Topping was murdered be-
cause of something she knew. She was part of
her husband’s team. Although her death was
listed as “suicide," like Rep. W. Mills, Topp-
ing said it was murder.

(8) Lou Russell — Carl Oglesby in the Bos-
ton Phoenix (July 31, 1973) refers to “the re-
cent death of Lou Russell, an old-hand se-
curity cop employed by McCord Associates on
the Republican convention security contract.
He brought about a dozen checks in different
amounts from McCord to Fcnsterwald’s Com-
mittee to Investigate Assassinations duringa
period in which McCord and Fcnstcrwald arc
not supposed to have known each other." '

18. "Looking Jor evidence": (Washington
Post. 6-21-73) Howard Hunt testified before
the Grand Jury that Charles Colson called
from the White House and told him to “go to

Bremer’s apartment and see if there is left or
radical reading material around.” The night
before this testimony, June 11,1973, Hunt was
hurt, beat up in his cell.

Hunt’s attorney, Bittman, asked for per-
mission to review the record of the Wallace
story and amend it later, it necessary, because
oj the possibility oj mistakes ajter the attack.
Will he be forced to change testimony to pro-
tect the White House and Colson’s connec-
tions to the Wallace shooting?

Herb Kalmbach was pouring money into the
defeat of Wallace.

19. Assassination plans Jor Nixon: “After
the martial law they planned to get Nixon." —
Louis Tackwood, Glass House Tapes. Avon
Press.

20. Andrew Topping: Topping told Detec-
tive Peter Book that "rightist forces beyond his
control caused his wife to be killed.” (Washing-
ton Post, San Jose Mercury. 8-12-72)

21. Tackwoodpress conference: October 25,
1971, New York Times

22. Violence in Miami: William Lemmer,
Harper's. Dee. 1972

23. Edward Martin. McCord: Washington
Post, June 18, 1972. "White." E. Howard
Hunt: Los Angeles Times, June 20.1972. Ibid,
Glass House Tapes, page 237, McCord was
"Martin."

24. Washington Post, October 11. 1972

25. WorkingJor Agnew "the man": Harold
W. Eldridge helped write the letter in Florida
that smeared Senator Muskie. The purpose
was to keep Muskie from winning in 1972,
otherwise the "man" would not be able to run
again in 1976. Nixon had already been Presi-
dent. The “man" who wanted the chance must
have been Agnew. If Muskie lost, Nixon
would get the nomination in August and win
the election in November. If Nixon were kill-
ed, “the man" wouldn't have to wait until 1976.

26. Tom Charles Huston: Details on
Domestic Intelligence Plans, Orders for Presi-
dent Nixon, New York Times 6-7-73

27. Evidence oj YAFinfiltration, right wing
takeover of White House by 1970: “A Plot
That Flopped” by Patricia Swank, Look, 1-26-
65; Warren Report, cover-up. Doubleday,
1964, pp. 293-298, pass over high level con-
spiracy; "Meetings before the Commission on
the Assassination of President John F.
Kennedy,” Vol XVIII, pp. 834-898

28. Nomenclature of an Assassination Ca-
bal: William Torbit, Jan. 1970, unpublished
manuscript put together by trial lawyers in the
Southwest who work with these intelligence
agencies and government agents. The author
has participated in eases in the Southwest. He
is a member of the American Trial Lawyers
Assn.

29. Office oj Emergency Service: Two-way
bedside radio, AP, Los Angeles Times, 11-11-
72; "Big Brother," Plans for a Dictatorship,
Alan Stang, American Opinion. January 1973;
James McCord, Censorship plans, Montery
Peninsula Herald, 10-23-72

30. Inter-Divisional Information Unit: Sup-
posedly being abolished, Washington Post, 6-
1-73

31. DALE: 6-25-73, New York Times

32. UCLA Inst, to Study Causes0j Violent
Behavior: 4-1-73, San Francisco Examiner,
temporarily put aside, after Watergate.
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Letter to Mae Brussell

lam overwhelmed by thcamount of work you
have done and the documentation you bring to
support your thesis.

I have tried myself fora long time to bring out
the conspiratorial aspects of the Greek coup of
1967 (read American coup), and just now, six
years later, does it seem that people arc begin-
ning to understand how it happened that Greece
went under a dictatorship.

Your work is tremendously important. You
have understood the framework in which these
events take place, but more than that, you have
dug out the facts . . .

Andreas G. Papandreou
King City, Ontario

Letter to Paul Krassner
1thought Mae Brusscll'spiece interesting, but
surely her style is a trifle repetitive . . .
Stewart Alsop
Washington, D.C
Editor's note: So is Catch-22.

Letter to The New York Times

In The Realist, there is an article which ser-
iously attacks the basic integrity of your news-
paper. The implications of this article are that
The New York Times not only distorts the truth
but manipulates the news.

The article deals with the assassination of
John Kennedy, Robert Kennedy and Martin Lu-
ther King. Ido not feel that The New York Times
need to address the contents of this article nor
the facts involved in each of these murders. What
must be addressed arc the charges relating to the
allegedly biased and deceitful presentation of
these news stories to your readers.

You have my permission to print this letter
along with a rely which I believe is mandated.

33. ENSKIDS: 1jos Angeles Times, 6-14-73,
CIA infiltration into U.S. through loopholes

34. Prison Experimentations: Lister Unit.
San Francisco Chronicle. 11-21-72, Monterey
Herald. 3-16-73. Vacaville, LA. Free Press. 3-
16-73, Violations of Nuremberg Code, write
Venccrcmos Prison Committee, 1969 Univer-
sity Avc.. E. Palo Alto, Calif. 94303

35. Ronald Reagan's super Gestapo Cabi-
net: San Jose Mercury. San Francisco
Chronicle. June 2, 1973

36. Enemy list: Kirkpatrick Sales, LA.
Times. 7-30-73

37. Eliot Richardson, “Secretary of Lobo-
tomics,” Berkeley Barb. June 29, 1973

38. J. Walter Thompson Advertising
Agency, 3-5-73, New York Times: James
Webb Young, former vice-president and direc-
tor of Thompson, conceived the idea, during
World War Il, of having a “War Advertising
Council” to aid the war effort with advertising
campaigns at no cost to the government.
Young worked for the Ford Foundation and
Nelson Rockefeller as coordinator of Inter-
American Affairs in South America.

39. Agnew. Maj. Gen. Dunn: San Jose Mer-
cury, Jack Anderson, 7-7-73

40. Warren Berger. New Constitution, no
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Failure to do so would be detrimental to the
American concept of a free press and an admis-
sion of guilt. A personal reply to me would be
inadequate; a public reply would be judged by
your readers.

Robert Payne

Massapequa Park, L.I.
Letter to Lee Quamstrom

In “The Legend of Hassler’s Asshole,” you
make a terrible mistake regarding the medical
reasons for massaging a prostate gland which
should be corrected immediately lest some
unsuspecting reader believes he has found a new
means of'achicving orgasm.

The prostate gland is only one ofa pair of se-
veral glands that combine to secrete their fluids
in achieving orgasm. Massage of the infected
prostate gland itself is little different than mas-
sage of an infected forefinger.

Infected areasof the body become swollenand
ripe within inflammatory fluids. Massage of an
infected prostate gland would do little except
secrete some residue semen and excrete the
inflammatory exudate.

Those who experience orgasm through pros-
tatic massage are those with hyper-excitatory
nerve endings. They probably arc amongst a
group with a chronic history of forefinger or
penile stimulation of the asshole.

Therefore, Hasslcrand George Walker should
not feel discouraged at the fact that orgasm was
not achieved in the condom rub. Clearly, Hass-
ler is not a member of the small hard-core group
which experience orgasm due to hyper-excita-
tory nerve endings . . .

A Doctor
Redway, Calif.

Letter to Ken Kesey

I*m writing to you partly because you’re sorry
you didn’t write to Jack Kcrouac before hedied,
and some day you'll be dead too and 1don’t want
to be sorry | didn't write you.

Your interview with Krassner in The Realistis
really very good, better than your books even.
You seem very fucked up on some things butarc

trial by jury: 9-8-70, New York Times

41. General Haig: given number two Army
Post over 243 Senior Generals, Wash. Post,
NY Times. 9-8-72

42. Maj. Bennett, White Housestajj: Wash.
Post 6-17-73

43. J. Fred Buzhardt. Pentagon Lawyerinto
White House: San Francisco Chronicle. May
14, 1973

44. Raymond Procunier: “If we have politi-
cal prisoners we lock them up” — S.F.
Chronicle. 2-10-72

45. Books on Prisons: A few suggested read-
ings; there arc many more. Prisons. Problems
oj American Society. Gerald Leinwand,
Pocket Books, 1972; Maximum Security.
Letters from California's Prisons, Edited by
Eve Pell, Bantam Books, 1972; Ain't Nobody
Gonna Hear You Scream. Grossman Pub-
lishers, NY; Voicesfrom the Big House, Harlo
Press, Detroit; Imprisoned in America, Pri-
son Communications, 1776 to Attica, Cynthia
Owen Philip, Harper & Row; Political Pri-
soners 0j America. Charles Goodell; Blood in
My Eye, George Jackson, Random House

46. Elmer Davis, P.O. B-3677, Reprcsa,
Calif. 95671, U.S. District Court — Elmer
Davis. Plaintiff. Complaint for Civil Da-

so beautiful on others that you balance out.

Your statement on abortion isverygood. I us-
ed to be an orderly in a nursing home. We had
one old lady in particular who would sit in her
bed all day and babble kind of like an excited
chicken. She never made a word you could re-
cognize, except for one day when | came in to
wipe her ass and she said some garbled crap or
other and | said, “l just can’t understand what
you’re saying, Katie," and she all ofa sudden be-
came lucid and said,clearasa bell, “Iknow. Isn’t
it terrible?" Everyone else on the staff wasamaz-
ed that something was going on in her poor,
fucked-up head.

The beautiful passage in Wind in the Willows
you talked about also struck me when | read it
some years back. | was greatly pleased to find
such a moving, really religious experience in that
book — the great god who looks after the inno-
cents and then lets them forget. Parts of the Dr.
Dolittle books reflect a reverence for animals
and life itself— you should read them or re-read
them.

You take care of yourself. It is very important
for us to have you around.

Jim Thorson
Athens, Georgia

Editor's note: Kescy’s book Garage Sale will
be published soon. He’s been working on the
film version of One Flew Over the Cuckoo}’
Nest. He comments: “Who could have guessed
that writing a screenplay of one’s own work
could have been so not only shall we call it
Tedious, but as well so downright difficult. 1
think I could have adapted practically anything
— Beautijul Losers, Theldiot, ComingojAgein
Samoa —easier than Cuckoo's Nest. It’s bound
to be easier circumcising someone else, if for no
other reason than the posture involved in the
operation is lessstrenuous.” He’salso putting to-
gether the first issue of Spitinthe Ocean (SI —or
S5 for the first 7 issues — to SITO, Rt. 8, Box
477, Pleasant Hill, Oregon 97401), the theme of
which is Consciousness of the Aged, including
my synopsis of a pomy flick for senior citizens,
called Gum Job.

mages, “defamation of character, violation of
right to privacy with wanton, malicious and
evil intent and design to cause the false arrest
and imprisonment of the plaintiff.” Filed June
23, 1973.

47. Plans to kill Eldridge Cleaverand Cesar
Chavez: Treasury Dept. ATF, Larry Shears,
Dec. 17, 1971,5:50 p.m., Channel 23, Los An-
geles; New York Times, January 2, 1972; San
Francisco Chronicle. 12-20-72, Trial of Sonny
Barger: “He had been approached by law en-
forcement officers asking him to kill
someone." He frequently entered into deals
with authorities in exchange for dismissal of
charges against gang members.

48. "Ex-Convict 'Recruited' Jor Rioting":
UPI, S.F. Chronicle. 7-26-73

49. San Quentin Six. GrandJury walkouts:
Send contributions to San Quentin Six Legal
Defense Fund. 558 Capp St., San Francisco
94110

50. Evelle Younger, Attorney General of
California, has been named as part of the na-
tional Gestapo intelligence operations of
which Watergate is one aspect. Glass House
Tapes. Louis Tackwood, “Younger’s links to
Washington, Squad 19, martial lawplans. .
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Peace is

at hand..
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